
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (1) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 6th July, 2017 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London, WC2 5HR 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Angela Harvey (Chairman) 
Julia Alexander 
Murad Gassanly 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda.  
  
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception from 9.30am. If you have a disability 
and require any special assistance please contact the 
Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of the 
meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Jonathan Deacon. 
 
Email: jdeacon@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 2783 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal or 
prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   BOCCONCINO, 19 BERKELEY STREET, W1 (Pages 1 - 
68) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

1. West End 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area 

Bocconcin

o, 19 

Berkeley 

Street, W1  

Variation of 

a premises 

Licence 

17/04528/LIPV 
 

 

 
 

 

2.   MARBLE ARCH THEATRE, WESTERN TRAFFIC ISLAND, 
MARBLE ARCH, W1 

(Pages 69 - 
134) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

2. Hyde Park 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

Marble 

Arch 

Theatre, 

Western 

New 

Premises 

Licence 

17/05472/LIPN 
 

 

 



 
 

 

impact 

area 

Traffic 

Island, 

Marble 

Arch, W1  

 
 

3.   CLUB STORM, 28A LEICESTER SQUARE, WC2 (Pages 135 - 
194) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

3. St James’s 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Club 

Storm, 28A 

Leicester 

Square, 

WC2  

New 

Premises 

Licence 

17/04597/LIPN 
 

 

 
 

 

4.   LONDON FILM MUSEUM, 45 WELLINGTON STREET, WC2 (Pages 195 - 
214) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

4. St James’s 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

London 

Film 

Museum, 

45 

Wellington 

Street, 

WC2  

Variation of 

Premises 

Licence 

17/04163/LIPV 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
Charlie Parker 
Chief Executive 
29 June 2017 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The City of Westminster statement of licensing policy applies to all applications where 
relevant representations have been made. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to 
have regard to the City of Westminster statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of state under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  6th July  
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/04528/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  Bocconcino 
19 Berkeley Street 
London 
W1J 8ED 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  West End 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

28 April 2017 

Applicant: Bocconcino Properties Limited 
 

Premises: Bocconcino 
 

Premises address: 19 Berkeley Street 
London 
W1J 8ED 
 

Ward: 
 

West End  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

The premises currently operates as a restaurant to the 
ground and lower ground floor. 
 

Variation description: The applicant is seeking the following:  
 

1. To extend the terminal hour for the Sale of Alcohol 
to 0230 Wednesday to Saturday (currently 00:30). 
 

2. To extend the terminal hour for the provision of 
Late Night Refreshment to 02:30 Wednesday to 
Saturday (currently 00:30). 
 

3. To ADD the following Regulated Entertainment 
‘indoors’ at the premises 10:00 to 00:30 hours 
Monday and Tuesday, 10:00 to 02:30 hours 
Wednesday to Saturday, and 12:00 to 22:30 hours 
Sunday for the following licensable activities: 

a. Performance of Dance 
b. Performance of Live Music 
c. Playing of Recorded Music 
d. Anything of a similar description to 

Performance of Dance, Performance of Live 
Music or Playing of Recorded Music.  
 

4. For the provision of the above Regulated 
Entertainment the following non-standard timing is 
requested:  

a. From the end of terminal hour on New 
Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on 
New Year’s Day. 
 

5. To remove conditions 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 22, 27 and 
28 from the Premises Licence and replace them 

page 2



with proposed conditions to form part  of the 
Operating Schedule. 

 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since September 2013 
and a copy of the current premises licence can be found 
at Appendix 6.  
 

Applicant submissions: Please see Appendix 2 
 

 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Performance of Dance (indoors)   
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday   10:00 00:30  
No change.  Tuesday   10:00 00:30 

Wednesday   10:00 02:30 

Thursday   10:00 02:30 

Friday   10:00 02:30 

Saturday   10:00 02:30 

Sunday   12:00 22:30 

Seasonal  
Variations / 
Non-standard  
timings:  

Current: Proposed: 

  
From end of terminal hour on New 
Years Eve to start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. 
 

 

Performance of live music (Indoors)  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday   10:00 00:30  
No change.  Tuesday   10:00 00:30 

Wednesday   10:00 02:30 

Thursday   10:00 02:30 

Friday   10:00 02:30 

Saturday   10:00 02:30 

Sunday   12:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

  
From end of terminal hour on New 
Years Eve to start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. 
 

page 3



 
 

Playing of Recorded Music (Indoors)  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday   10:00 00:30  
No change.  Tuesday   10:00 00:30 

Wednesday   10:00 02:30 

Thursday   10:00 02:30 

Friday   10:00 02:30 

Saturday   10:00 02:30 

Sunday   12:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

  
From end of terminal hour on New 
Years Eve to start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. 
 

 

Anything of a similar description (Indoors)  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday   10:00 00:30  
No change.  Tuesday   10:00 00:30 

Wednesday   10:00 02:30 

Thursday   10:00 02:30 

Friday   10:00 02:30 

Saturday   10:00 02:30 

Sunday   12:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

  
From end of terminal hour on New 
Years Eve to start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 4



Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Indoors Indoors  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 23:00 00:30    
No change.  Tuesday 23:00 00:30   

Wednesday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:30 

Thursday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:30 

Friday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:30 

Saturday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:30 

Sunday 23:00 00:30   

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
New Years Eve 23:00 to 05:00 on 
New years Day.  
 

 
No change.  

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

On Sales  On Sales  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 10:00  00:30    
No change.  Tuesday 10:00 00:30   

Wednesday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Thursday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Friday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Saturday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Sunday 12:00 22:30   

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
From end of terminal hour on New 
Years Eve to start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day 
 

 
No change.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 5



Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 10:00 00:30    
No change.  Tuesday 10:00 00:30   

Wednesday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Thursday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Friday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Saturday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:30 

Sunday 12:00 22:30   

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

  
From end of terminal hour on New 
Years Eve to start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. 
 

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

 
No layout alterations are being applied for.  

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

 
Condition 9 
 
The maximum number of persons  
accommodated at any one time (excluding 
staff) shall not exceed: 
 
Ground Floor : 60 
Lower Ground Floor: 67 
 
Subject to the total number at any one 
time not exceeding 127. 
  
 

 
To be amended to:  
 
The maximum number of persons 
accommodated at any one time (excluding 
staff) shall not exceed: 
 
Ground Floor 90 
Lower Ground Floor 70 
 
Subject to the total number at any one 
time not exceeding 130 

 
Condition 10 
 
A log shall be kept detailing all refused 
sales of alcohol. The log should include 
the date and time of the refused sale and 
the name of the member of staff who 
refused the sale. The log shall be available 
for inspection at the premises by the police 

 
To be amended to: 
 
An incident log shall be kept at the 
premises, and made available on request 
to an authorised officer of the City Council 
or the Police. It must be completed within 
24 hours of the incident and will record the 
following: 

page 6



or an authorised officer of the City Council 
at all times whilst the premises is open. 
 

 
 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning 
crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive 
weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, 
searching equipment or scanning 
equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or 
emergency service. 
 

 
Condition 11 
 

The premises shall only operate as a 
restaurant :  
 
(i) in which customers are 
shown to their table,  
 
(ii) where the supply 
of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service 
only,  
 
(iii) which provide food in the form of 
substantial table meals that are prepared 
on the premises and are served and 
consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery,  
 
(iv) which do not provide any take away 
service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption,  
 
(v) which do not provide any take away 
service of food or drink after 23.00, and  
 
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold, 
supplied, or consumed on the premises 
otherwise than to persons who are seated 
in the premises and bona fide taking 
substantial table meals there and provided 
always that the consumption of alcohol by 
such persons is ancillary to taking such 
meals. 
 
 

 
To be amended to: 
 
The premises shall only operate as a 
restaurant 
 
(i) in which customers are shown to their 
table, 
 
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter 
or waitress service only, 
 
(iii) which provide food in the form of 
substantial table meals that are prepared 
on the premises and are served and 
consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery, 
 
(iv) which do not provide any take away 
service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 
 
(v) which do not provide any take away 
service of food or drink after 23.00, and 
 
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or 
supplied, otherwise than for consumption 
by persons who are seated in the 
premises and bona fide taking substantial 
table meals there, and provided always 
that the consumption of alcohol by such 
persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 
 
Notwithstanding this condition customers 
are permitted to take from the premises 
part consumed and resealed bottles of 
wine supplied ancillary to their meal. 
 

page 7



 
Condition 12  
 
"Notwithstanding condition 11, alcohol 
may be supplied and consumed prior to a 
meal in the designated bar area, by up to a 
maximum at any one time, of 15 persons 
dining at the premises" 
 

 
To be amended to: 
 
Notwithstanding condition 11, until 0030 hours 
Monday to Saturday and 2230 hours Sunday, 
alcohol may be supplied and consumed prior 
to a meal in the designated bar area, by 
persons dining at the premises 
 

 
Condition 14  
 
All patrons will be met by a member of 
staff at the reception area (as marked on 
the plans) before being directed to seating 
in the relevant area of the premises 
 

 
To be amended to: 
 
Until 0030 hours Monday to Saturday and 
2230 hours Sunday, the supply of alcohol 
shall be by way of waiter/waitress service 
only, with the exception of the designated 
bar marked on the plans. 
 

 
Condition 22  
 
No noise shall emanate from the premises 
nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise 
to a nuisance. 
 
 

 
To be amended to: 
 
No noise generated on the premises, or by 
its associated plant or equipment, shall 
emanate from the premises nor vibration 
be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 

 
Condition 27  
 
Patrons temporarily leaving the premises 
shall not be permitted to take drinks 
outside with them. 
 

 
To be amended to: 
 
Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and 
then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, 
shall not be permitted to take drinks or 
glass containers with them. 
 
 

 
Condition 28  
 
The licence holder shall enter into an 
agreement with a hackney carriage and/or 
private carriage firm to provide transport 
for customers, with contact numbers made 
readily available to customers who will be 
encouraged to use such services. 
 

 
To be amended to: 
 
A direct telephone number for the 
manager at the premises shall be publicly 
available at all times the premises is open. 
This telephone number is to be made 
available to residents and businesses in 
the vicinity. 

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

Not applicable  Not applicable  

 
 
 
 

page 8



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative:  Ms Nicola Curtis  
 

Received:  
 

19th May 2017 

  
The applicant is seeking the following variations: 

 

6. To extend the terminal hour for the Sale of Alcohol ‘on’ the premises to 0230 
Wednesday to Saturday. 
 

7. To extend the terminal hour for the provision of Late Night Refreshment to 0230 
Wednesday to Saturday. 
 

8. To provide the following Regulated Entertainment ‘indoors’ at the premises 1000 
to 0030 hours Monday and Tuesday, 1000 to 0230 hours Wednesday to 
Saturday, and 1200 to 2230 hours Sunday: 

a. Performance of Dance 
b. Performance of Live Music 
c. Playing of Recorded Music 
d. Anything of a similar description to Performance of Dance, Performance of 

Live Music or Playing of Recorded Music  
 

9. For the provision of the above Regulated Entertainment the following non-
standard timing is requested:  

a. From the end of terminal hour on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Year’s Day. 
 

10. To remove conditions 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 22, 27 and 28 from the Premises Licence 
and replace them with conditions detailed in the Operating Schedule. 

 

I wish to make the following representations in relation to the above application: 
 

1. The extension of the terminal hour for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely 
effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area. 
 

2. The extension of the terminal hour for the provision of Late Night Refreshment 
will have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area. 
 

3. The provision of Regulated Entertainment at the premises, and the hours 
requested will have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in 
the area and may impact on Public Safety. The premises are not considered 
suitable for the purpose of regulated entertainment until they have been 
assessed in line with the Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment and 

page 9



any associated noise breakout. 
 

4. The non-standard timing requested for the Provision of Regulated Entertainment 
will have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area. 
 

5. The removal of the conditions from the Licence will have the likely effect of an 
increase in Public Nuisance in the area. 

 
The applicant has provided additional information and conditions with the operating 
schedule which is being considered but does not fully address the concerns of 
Environmental Health. 

The applicant did benefit from pre-application advice before making this application. 
This advice included the following observations and comments: 

 

 The nature of the Regulated Entertainment will be live music, recorded music, a 
DJ and dancing.  
 

 The proposal was to increase the capacity of the ground floor to 90 persons, but 
to maintain the overall capacity of the premises as no more than 127 persons. 
This application proposes the following capacities (through the removal and 
replacement of condition 9): 

o Ground Floor 90 
o Lower Ground Floor 70 
o Subject to the total number at any one time not exceeding 130. 

 

 The applicant was advised to clarify whether the intention is to close and clear 
the ground floor (move people downstairs) after 0030 hours, or whether the 
ground floor is to be used for seating and consumption of alcohol.  
 

 Although the premises are not located within a Cumulative Impact Area, the area 
has many residents. Such an application significantly changes the style of 
operation. The current licence restricts the premises to a restaurant operation. 
The addition of Regulated Entertainment and opening beyond ‘core’ hours may 
lead to the premises becoming a destination venue, resulting in more customers 
arriving in and departing from the vicinity late at night. Patrons from other 
licensed premises may migrate to the premises in order to take advantage of 
later hours. This is likely to have the effect of increasing the potential for noise, 
anti-social behaviour and public nuisance in the local area. Patrons would be 
leaving later, having had the opportunity to consume more alcohol.  

 

 Introducing Regulated Entertainment requires the applicant to address Public 
Safety concerns. The operators of the premises need to ensure conformity from 
a District Surveyors technical standards viewpoint and subject to the relevant 
provisions of the Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment being followed 
where applicable. 

 

 WCC records do not indicate that there have been any statutory or public 
nuisance complaints made against the premises since they have been operating. 

page 10



 

 There is a mezzanine-style entrance at ground floor with direct visibility down to 
the lower ground floor. If Regulated Entertainment is to be provided at the 
premises the applicant should provide some form of acoustic lobby to prevent 
any noise breakout from the entrance door, and the plans should be updated to 
reflect such a structure.  

 

 There is also potential for internal noise transmission to the buildings 
above/adjacent to the premises. Appendix 11 of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy requires as a minimum a statement demonstrating how the application will 
comply with noise criteria. My advice was to recommend the submission of a full 
noise report as detailed within Appendix 11 to include as a minimum an 
environmental noise impact assessment, an acoustic report, a sound insulation 
and sound reduction measures assessment and the planned management 
measures for control of noise.  
 

The granting of any variation of the Premises Licence as presented would have 
the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area and may 
impact on Public Safety. 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

The Metropolitan Police Service 

Representative: PC Toby Janes  
 

Received: 
 

26th May 2017 

 
With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan 
Police, as a Responsible Authority, make a representation against the above 
application. 

 
It is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the licensing objectives in 
relation to the prevention of crime and disorder. 

 
The conditions offered within the application do address some of our concerns. 
However we have concerns that this application may cause further policing problems in 
an already demanding area. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 11



2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  Mr Peter Cooper  

Address and/or Residents Association: Bloomsbury Property Services,  
98 Gray's Inn Road, 
London  

Status: Managing agents of 
residential apartments 

In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

25th May 2017 

We are managing agents of two apartments, 63 and 73 Berkeley House. The proposals 
are totally unacceptable on the grounds of increased noise and disturbance late at night 
and into the early hours. Turning the premises from a restaurant to nightclub and late 
night venue will cause our tenants great stress.  
 
This type of club/ late night spot will invariably attract smokers, hence pollution and the 
transport from the venue late at night will also add to noise and air pollution. 
 

Name: Mr Los Christina  
 

Address and/or Residents Association: 17 Berkeley Street 
London 
 W1J8EA  
 

Status: Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

25th May 2017 

The furthering of the hours for sale of alcohol and the widening of the range of activities 
will increase the public nuisance in the area. Granting the licence will also increase the 
risks of crime and disorder emanating therefrom. 
 

Name: Mrs Helen Arjomandkhah  
 

Address and/or Residents Association 17 Berkeley Street, 
 Flat 7,  
London  
 

Status: Resident  In support of opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

25th May 2017 

 
Bocconcino is only 2 doors away from us and also shares the back lightwell with our 
building. it is running as a restaurant at the moment but with this application it will be 
come a club/bar closing in the early ours of the morning.  
 
Berkeley street is already over run with clubs, bars and restaurants. The traffic of cars, 
stationary taxis with their engines running spewing out poisonous fumes and the extreme 
noise all of this, not to mention the noise from all the people visiting these places causes 
a great disturbance to our home lives during the evening/night.  
When I return to my home I always have to ask a group of smokers to remove 
themselves from my doorway before I can attempt to open my door. This is stressful and 

page 12



intimidating. Also, as a non smoker it is very unpleasant to have to walk through their 
clouds of smoke to enter my own home. It is becoming almost intolerable.  
These are the problems on the outside thst filter inside but since Bocconcino also shares 
our lightwell I think the noise from the music will most definitely disturb all of the residents 
in our building. 
 

Name: Mr Ahmad Reza Salar Boroumnad  
 

Address and/or Residents Association Number 10,  
Baerkeley Street,  
London  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 24th May 2017 

I live at 10 Berkeley Street and am the managing agent of the building. I would like to 
object to this application due to the excessive number of similar establishment on 
Berkeley Street which have caused our life miserable over years. Berkeley Street is 
saturated and there is no more room for such applications. 
 

Name: Mr DIMITRIOS LOS  
 

Address and/or Residents Association 17 BERKELEY STR,  
LONDON,  
W1J8EA  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 25th May 2017 

We object to the further deterioration of the area.  
 

Name: Mr Ulrich Brandt-Pollmann  
 

Address and/or Residents Association Flat 12,  
17 Berkeley Street,  
London, W1J 8EA  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 23rd  May 2017 

I live at 17 Berkeley street which is two doors down from these premises. I want to 
express my strongest objections to this requested changes to the current licence on 
grounds of prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder.  
 
I currently suffer from noise and nuisance from 10pm to early hours of the morning from 
current premises in the street in particular, Palm Beach Casino which is right across the 
street from Bocconcino and Charlie Berkeley which is at 15 Berkeley street.  
I therefore request the committee to reject this application.  
 
 
 

Name: Mrs Zohreh Ghanadian  

page 13



Address and/or Residents Association  
Flat 9,  
17 Berkeley Street,  
London 
W1J 8EA  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 23rd  May 2017 

I'm the owner of Flat 9, 17 Berkeley Street. I strongly object to the application made by 
Bocconcino 19 Berkeley Street on grounds of prevention of public nuisance and 
prevention of crime and disorder.  
 
Berkeley Street is saturated with late night operators, and this will cause a lot of nuisance 
to the residents.  
 

Name: Mr Ron Whelan  
 

Address and/or Residents Association 29A Brook Street,  
London,  
W1K 4HE  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 23rd May 2017 
 

This premises Licence variation application, by extending both the hours for the serving of 
alcohol and the provision of music, would substantially add to the levels of stress for local 
residents who are already suffering from the activities of this establishment. Additionally, 
by extending the hours of late night activity in these premises, it increases the risks for an 
increase in late night anti-social behaviour in Berkeley Street.  
 

Name: Mrs Rittu Kumar  

Address and/or Residents Association Flat 5, 
17 Berekley Street,  
Mayfair  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 26th May 2017 

I write to make an objection as Hawksford Fiduciaries in relation to the Application to 
premises license under s34 Licensing Act 2003 ref:17/04528/LIPV Bocconcino, 19 
Berkeley Street, London, W1 J 8ED. We are the owner of Flat 5, 17 Berkeley Street so 
will be directly affected by these proposals.  
 
I write to object this application on the basis of an ever increasing nuisance we are seeing 
in this area from businesses being able to change their license and having a negative 
impact on the quiet enjoyment of the residents in the vicinity.  
 
We have in recent years seen an ever increasing issue with noise, anti-social behaviour 
and other such problems which arise due to the late night licensed premises in what is in 
fact a small area. The residents have not been consulted or made aware of this 

page 14



application prior to it being made, which we feel is unacceptable given the currently 
issues we are already experiencing.  
 
Adding another such business to this area is downgrading it and causing further 
discomfort to the residents of our property and the surrounding buildings. We are allowed 
quiet enjoyment of our home and the cumulative impact of licensed premises are already 
hindering this greatly. This application, if granted, would only increase the noise levels 
and anti-social behaviour in our neighbourhood, we do not want this to set a further 
precedent for our area, as we feel one has already been set which is having a huge 
negative impact.  
 
We believe the application is misconceived by what its intentions are and how it is being 
labelled, this would effectively no longer be just a restaurant. We can only therefore draw 
assumptions that they plan to create a late night bar / club which would have an effect on 
public safety, be a public nuisance, and goes completely against the rights of the local 
resident to quiet enjoyment of their properties and feeling safe in the immediate home 
environment.  
 

Name: Jaleh Zand  

Address and/or Residents Association Flat 9,  
17 Berkeley Street,  
London 
W1J 8EA  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 23rd  May 2017 

I'm a resident of Flat 9, 17 Berkeley Street and and the Chairman of 17 Berkeley Street 
Residents Association. I strongly object to the application made by Bocconcino 19 
Berkeley Street. The grounds for objection are prevention of public nuisance, prevention 
of crime and disorder, and public safety.  
 
We currently experience extreme level of nuisance from current premises operating late 
at night in Berkeley Street and the street is totally saturated with late night operators.  
The current application seeks extension to the hours and change to conditions. This is a 
total change to the current operations, and such extended hours mean a transformation 
to a night club from a restaurant. This is totally unacceptable. This will mean more cars, 
more traffic, more drunken people early hours of the morning, when residents are sleep.  
17, 18 and 20 Berkeley street are all residential properties with very close proximity to the 
premises. When they applied for their original licence few years ago, I attended the 
subcommittee. The applicant was very clear that they are only a restaurant and have no 
plans to operate as a club or a bar. This new application however contradicts that notion.  
 
I strongly urge the committee to reject this application. Thank you for your consideration!  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 15



Additional Comments:  
 
Statement of Jaleh Zand, 17 Berkeley Street Residents Association 
 
1 Introduction  

1.1 I made a representation on 23 May 2017 on behalf of 17 Berkeley Street 

Residents Association, objecting to the grant of an application to vary the premises 

licence for 19 Berkeley Street. 

 
1.2 My representation was also made on my own behalf as a resident of Flat 9, 17 

Berkeley Street, immediately adjacent to Bocconcino. 

 
1.3 My representation referred to the ‘saturation’ of Berkeley Street and its immediate 

environs with late night licensed premises. The number of premises operating late 

in the evening has increased in recent years, to the extent that late night licensed 

premises have cumulatively given rise to serious problems of crime, disorder and 

nuisance. Local residents have to bear the brunt of this. Residents of Berkeley 

Street have been plagued in recent years by a huge increase in noise, nuisance, 

anti-social behaviour and other problems, caused by the number of late night 

licensed premises within a small area. 

 
1.4 The licensing authority will be aware that this view is shared by others in the area. 

Indeed, a report has been produced by an independent consultant following a 

study of the evening and night time economy in parts of Mayfair and its impact on 

the statutory ‘licensing objectives’. The document can be accessed here: 

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/www.westminster.gov.uk/files/mayfair_eveni

ng_and_night-time_economy_behaviour_study.pdf 

 
1.5 The applicant should be aware of these issues, both as an existing late night 

operator in the area and as I made a number of these points at the hearing in 2013 

when the premises licence for 19 Berkeley Street was granted.  

 
1.6 This statement is written in support of my representation and is intended to assist 

the Licensing Sub-Committee and the parties by setting out in more detail why 

residents believe that the number of late night or drink-led premises in the area 

has given rise to a cumulative impact which is having such a disproportionate 

effect on residents, and why this application falls squarely within the scope of 

these concerns. 

 
2 The application 

2.1 The application states that the premises is a restaurant. The scope of the 

application and the terminal hour sought suggests that it is intended to create a 

page 16

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/www.westminster.gov.uk/files/mayfair_evening_and_night-time_economy_behaviour_study.pdf
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/www.westminster.gov.uk/files/mayfair_evening_and_night-time_economy_behaviour_study.pdf


basement nightclub. In any event, my understanding is that the following licensable 

activities are sought: 

 
2.1.1 Extension of the hours for the sale of alcohol to 1000 to 0230 Wednesday to 

Saturday. 

2.1.2 Extension of the provision of late night refreshment to 2300 to 0230 

Wednesday to Saturday. 

2.1.3 Provision of the performance of dance 1000 to 0030 Monday & Tuesday, 

1000 to 0230 Wednesday to Saturday and 1200 to 2230 Sunday. 

2.1.4 Provision of the performance of live music 1000 to 0030 Monday & 

Tuesday, 1000 to 0230 Wednesday to Saturday and 1200 to 2230 Sunday. 

2.1.5 Provision of the playing of recorded music 1000 to 0030 Monday & 

Tuesday, 1000 to 0230 Wednesday to Saturday and 1200 to 2230 Sunday. 

2.1.6 Provision of anything of a similar description to performance of dance, 

performance of live music or playing of recorded music 1000 to 0030 

Monday & Tuesday, 1000 to 0230 Wednesday to Saturday and 1200 to 

2230 Sunday. 

2.1.7 To amend the licence conditions – replace 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 22, 27, 28 with 

new conditions in Operating Schedule. 

 
2.2 The concerns residents have can be summarised as follows. 

 
2.2.1 Sale of alcohol – the proposed terminal hour is very late, and well outside 

core hours. Indeed the current hours are beyond core hours. This will lead 

to more people on the streets worse the wear for drink at a late hour, which 

is likely to harm the licensing objectives. 

 
2.2.2 Other licensable activities: regulated entertainment – the range of 

entertainment requested is not usual for a restaurant. It seems more akin to 

a hybrid restaurant/bar/club. This is type of premises which we have had 

many problems with in recent years. I refer Members to the report referred 

to at para 1.4 above. 

 
2.2.3 Dispersal of customers will be a major issue at this late hour. It is more 

likely that residents will be woken up by the noise of revellers and vehicular 

traffic, both of which are already major problems on Berkeley Street. 

 
2.2.4 The changes to the conditions have the effect of changing the operation of 

the premises. For instance, alcohol will no longer be required to be served 

page 17



by waiter/ess service after current hours. Alcohol would no longer be 

ancillary to substantial table meals as required currently to the licence. This 

style of premises already exists on Berkeley Street and causes problems for 

residents. This is borne out by the report referred to at para 1.4 above. 

 
2.2.5 The proposed activities, changes and terminal hour impacts on the 

likelihood of public nuisance and crime and disorder, as recognised by the 

Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy (see below). 

 
2.2.6 I am not clear why some of the conditions on the current licence are 

proposed to be deleted – for instance, the capacity limit in the designated 

bar area, and the removal of the requirement to provide customers with 

details of taxi services. 

 
2.2.7 It is relevant, for reasons which can be expanded on at the hearing,  that the 

applicant does not have planning permission for the hours they seek or the 

use they seek for the lower ground floor. 

 
2.2.8 Residents are very clear that we are suffering from a ‘cumulative impact’ of 

licensed premises which is having a negative effect on the licensing 

objectives in the area. Residents have made these points to the licensing 

authority on many occasions and they were accepted on a recent 

application for 11 Berkeley Street, which was restricted to ‘core hours’. 

 
3 Context: Berkeley Street and its immediate vicinity 

 
3.1 The number of licensed premises has increased markedly in recent years. This 

has led to a commensurate increase in nuisance caused to residents, and anti-

social behaviour witnesses by residents. In my view this is a result of a) the 

increase in the number of licensed premises operating; b) the number of new 

licences granted; c) the late terminal hour of many of these premises; and d) the 

style of operation of many of these premises. 

 
3.2 The table below sets out the licensed premises on Berkeley Street. 

 

Premises Premises type Terminal 
hour  
 

Capacity Points to 
note 

 
Palm Beach 
Casino, 30 
Berkeley St 

 
Casino 

 
7am 

 
840 

 
- 

page 18



 

 
Mayfair Bar, 
(part of the 
Mayfair Hotel) 
17 Stratton 
Street* 

 
Bar 

 
1.30am 

 
250 

 
Licence 
reviewed by 
residents  in 
2014 on public 
nuisance 
grounds 
 

 
Charlie 
Berkeley 
(formerly 
Funky 
Buddha), 15-
16 Berkeley 
Street 
 

 
Nightclub 

 
3am 

 
220 

 
Licence 
reviewed by 
police in 2015 
and supported 
by residents 

 
Nobu, 15 
Berkeley 
Street 
 

 
Restaurant 

 
2am 

 
460 

 
- 

 
Novikov, 50 
Berkeley 
Street 
 

 
Restaurant/bar/c
lub 

 
2am 

 
520 

 
- 

 
Bocconcino, 
19 Berkeley 
Street 

 
Restaurant 

 
12.30am 

 
127 

 
Started 
operating in 
2015. 
Previously 
offices. 

 
Café Pushkin, 
20 Berkeley 
Street 
 

 
Restaurant 
 

 
Core Hours 

 
125 

 
New licence 
granted in 
2013, not yet 
operating.  

 
12 Hay Hill 
 

 
Private Members 
Club with bar 

 
Midnight Mon-
Thurs, 1.30am 
Fri-Sat 

 
250 

 
Started 
operating in 
2015. 

 
Park Chinois, 
17 Berkeley 
Street 

 
Restaurant 

 
2am 

 
450 

 
Started 
operating in 
2015. 
Previously 
licensed but 
premises had 
not operated 
for some 

page 19



years. 

 
Sexy Fish, 1-4 
Berkeley 
Square 

 
Restaurant 

 
2am 

 
220 

 
Started 
operating in 
2015. Was 
previously a 
Bank. 

 
Fifty9, 59 
Berkeley 
Square 
 

  
Bar/club 

 
3.30am 

 
295 

 
- 

 
Raw and BBQ 

 
Restaurant 
 

 
‘Core Hours’ 

 
175 

 
Applied for 
1am but were 
restricted to 
core hours. 
 
Premises not 
yet operating. 
Previously 
offices. 

 
* Mayfair Bar entrance and exit is on Berkeley Street 
 

4 Comments on licensed premises in vicinity 

 
4.1 This table does not include the numerous licences for Dover Street. 

 

4.2 An analysis of the table clearly shows how the number of licensed premises 

operating and the total capacity has increased alarmingly in recent years. 

4.3 Bocconcino, Cafe Pushkin, 12 Hay Hill, Park Chinois, Sexy Fish, Raw and BBQ 

and Riffifi have all either been granted an entirely new licence (i.e. for a premises 

with no previous licensed history) or have started operating again after lying 

empty, in the last couple of years. By my calculations, the grant of 

licences/licences coming back into use amounts to an increase of well over 1000 

in licensed capacity, putting further strain on residents’ ability to sleep.  

 
4.4 A feature of licensed premises in the area is a style of operation which seems to 

be a restaurant/bar/lounge/nightclub hybrid. Yet another licensed premises 

operating in this style to a late terminal hour will undoubtedly exacerbate these 

problems. 

 
4.5 The licence for Mayfair Hotel (specifically the public bar) and ‘Charlie Berkeley’ 

(formerly ‘Funky Buddha’) have been subject to licence reviews within the last 3 

page 20



years. 

 
5 Effect of the existing late night licensed premises and the more recent premises 

 
5.1 Almost every number or every other number on the upper part of Berkeley Street is 

now a licensed late night operator. At the same time the upper part of Berkeley 

Street is very residential. On one side of the street is 10 Berkley Street with 19 

flats, 17 Berkeley Street with 12 flats, 18 Berkeley Street with 20 flats and Berkeley 

House has 42 flats and goes all the way through Hay Hill. On the other side in front 

of these residential buildings, is the Mayfair Hotel with 400 guest rooms, of which 

100 face Berkeley Street. On the lower part of Berkeley Street there are plans to 

add additional residential units, which were previously offices. There is also the 

Holiday Inn London Mayfair with guest rooms facing Berkeley Street.  

 
5.2 Below is a list of problems that the residents are currently facing from the 

cumulative impact of licensed premises. These problems have intensified hugely in 

recent years.  

 
5.2.1 The residents have been experiencing shouting, screaming and other 

antisocial behaviour from the clients of these operators late at night to early 

hours of the morning.  

 
5.2.2 There is vomit, dried urine outside our door steps and this has become 

more frequent with the increase in the number of operators 

 
5.2.3 There is waste and garbage left on both sides of the street and the council 

seems unable to deal with the current load.  

 
5.2.4 There is massive amount of traffic during the night, with double and triple 

parking on parts of the street. We experience cars honking, people showing 

off with their sport cars with loud engines creating very significant high 

decibel low frequency noise, which can’t be tackled with any acoustic 

system, waking up the residents late at night.  

 

5.2.5 The characteristics of our street have changed in the recent years and in 

general in south Mayfair. Car show rooms, and galleries leaving the area 

and being replaced by bar, restaurants, and clubs.  

5.3 As a result of the recent saturation there has been an increase in crime in Berkeley 

Street and the area around. The Mayfair Hotel is now using a privately funded 

scheme to provide extra policing around their premises.  

page 21



 
5.4 One of the most agonising problems for the residents is the extreme noise. The 

situation has worsened in the recent years. We believe that residents have been 

failed by the number of licences which have continued to be granted. We would 

like to further point out that at least as far as 5 years ago the problem of noise was 

not to this extreme extent.  

 
5.5 In short, all current four licensing objective are failing at Berkeley street. We have 

been actively involved in trying to bring about positive change to Berkeley Street. 

We applied for a licence review for the Mayfair hotel in 2014. We have supported 

the police’s review of ‘Charlie Berkeley’. We were also involved in setting up the 

Berkeley Street Monitoring Group, which aims to promote good practice for 

licensed premises, chaired by Councillor Glanz. 

 
6 Mayfair Evening and Night-time Economy Behaviour Study 

 
6.1 A report was published in May 2017 by an independent consultant following a 

study of the evening and night time economy in parts of Mayfair and its impact on 

the statutory ‘licensing objectives’. I understand that this study has been produced 

as part of the requirement for the Council to maintain and where appropriate 

review its Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
6.2 The report is available on the Council’s website (see link at para 1.4). It identifies 

24 licensed premises in the Berkeley Street area with advertised closing times of 

1am or later. Should this variation be granted, this would increase to 25. The report 

identified 10 late-night premises which ‘provide a bar/lounge/restaurant-type offer, 

typically with a mixture of bar counter or table-service and featuring dance floor 

areas and live-DJ entertainment. Several of these premises operate as de facto 

nightclubs with no, or minimal, food provision beyond 23:00 hrs.’ (page 3). This 

precisely our concern with this application. 

 
6.3 The report found that the issues reported by residents cannot be attributed to 

individual premises but are the result of the ‘cumulative impact’ of a large number 

of late night premises. My experience bears this out. Premises contribute both 

individually and collectively to the negative impact on the licensing objectives. 

 
6.4 The report found that this ‘hybrid’ type of premises, operating as a restaurant 

throughout the evening but then morphing into a bar/lounge/club later in the 

evening is ‘highly notable and impactful on the area’. We are extremely concerned 

that this application seeks to facilitate exactly this type of premises. 

 
6.5 The report concludes that Berkeley Street is a ‘prima facie’ candidate for 

page 22



designation as a ‘cumulative impact area’. 

 
7 Economic Impact of the change in nature of Berkeley Street 

 
7.1 While we understand the arguments in favour of the night time economy, the 

balance has to be maintained. The night economy should not jeopardise the 

successful day economy that Mayfair enjoys.  

 
7.2 We believe that such a massive number of late night operators so close to one 

another, are not in line with the character of this area. Mayfair has a very strong 

day time business economy. Both Berkeley Street and Berkeley Square are home 

to some of the most renowned hedge funds, trading companies, family offices, 

wealth managers, and consulting firms. These companies have chosen Mayfair 

due to its location but also the prestige that the area has historically offered. 

Mayfair is further known for galleries, car show rooms and art houses. In the light 

of the recent move by the biggest players in the financial industry from the City to 

Canary Wharf, the Council has to protect this area and prevent the flight of these 

smaller boutique firms based in the heart of London. Dirtier streets, piled with 

garbage, building materials and hard core detritus, urine and vomit are not 

conducive to attracting and maintaining legitimate business operations.  

 
7.3 Many local residents are of the view that this part of Mayfair has reached a tipping-

point. It is saturated with late night and drink-led premises, and residents suffer a 

range of noise nuisance and criminal behaviour well into the small hours. It is 

extremely difficult to pinpoint specific problems to specific premises, although 

clearly some have the potential to cause more nuisance than others. Because of 

this, it is difficult for residents to initiate effective reviews of licensed premises. This 

is precisely the sort of situation which makes a stress area necessary for Berkeley 

Street – the range of nuisance is so all-encompassing that it arises from the 

cumulative impact of all the premises taken together, as much as any individual 

problematic premises. 

 
8 Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 (“the Policy”) 

 
8.1 The application engages a number of sections of the Policy.  

 
8.2 The application is contrary to policies HRS1, RNT1, MD1 and PB1. The premises 

is clearly not a restaurant after current hours, which are themselves already 

beyond core hours.  

 
8.3 I would like in particular to refer to policy PN1, regarding public nuisance. The 

page 23



criteria for policy PN1 is stated to be: ‘The potential for nuisance associated with 

the style, characteristics and activities of the business to be carried on at the 

premises and the potential steps which could be taken to reduce the risk of 

nuisance occurring. This will particularly apply in areas of residential 

accommodation and where there is residential accommodation in the proximity of 

the premises.’  

 
8.4 Para 2.2.11 states that: ‘Playing of music can cause nuisance both through noise 

breakout transmission through the structure of the building and also by its effect on 

patrons, who become accustomed to high sound levels and to shouting to make 

themselves heard, which can lead to them being noisier when leaving premises. 

The later that music is played, the greater the potential for nuisance. Other major 

sources of noise nuisance are vehicles collecting customers; the slamming of car 

doors and the sounding of horns resulting from congestion and pressure for on-

street parking space and the need for the servicing of premises. These noises can 

be particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise levels are lower.’ 

 
8.5 Para 2.2.12 states that: ‘Residents are often subjected to nuisance from the noise 

of people on their way to and from premises, and loitering in the streets after they 

have left premises. This can affect residents even at some distance from the 

premises themselves, especially along routes to transport facilities, and to car 

parks and parking areas and on routes between late night premises of various 

types. The nuisance from noise depends on its nature and whether it is during the 

day, the evening or at night. Late night noise is often unsettling; particularly 

shouting and screaming. Some of this is associated with aggression and assaults 

but most of it is “high spirits”. It is impossible to distinguish between the reasons for 

these noises and in any case, it is very disturbing late at night. The degree of 

nuisance caused by noise increases with the lateness of the hour; especially if it 

disturbs or prevents sleep.’  

 
9 Conclusion 

 
9.1 The application is, with respect, misconceived. There is no detail in the application 

which explains the context of the application and what the purpose is. We must 

therefore assume that the purpose is to create a late night bar/club in the 

basement. There is a very unfortunate precedent for this type of premises in the 

area already.  

 
9.2 Berkeley Street is not currently included within a designated Cumulative Impact 

Area (CIA). However, the s182 Guidance is clear that it is nevertheless open to 

residents to raise the issue of cumulative impact. Berkeley Street has all the 

characteristics of a CIA, a view confirmed by a recent report commissioned by the 

Council. 

page 24



 
9.3 When determining licence applications, the focus should be on evaluating what is 

‘reasonably acceptable’ in a particular location (R (on the application of Hope & 

Glory Public House Ltd) v (1) City of Westminster Magistrates’ Court & Ors [2011] 

EWCA Civ 31). The scope of the licence and conditions should be looked at in a 

local context (Matthew Taylor v (1) Manchester City Council (2) TCG Bars Ltd 

[2012] EWHC 3467 (Admin)).  

 
9.4 For the reasons given, we would ask that the application is refused.  

 
9.5 I am not able to attend the hearing on 6 July. I will be represented by Richard 

Brown. 

Thank you for taking the time to consider the content of this statement. 
 
Jaleh Zand 
17 Berkeley Street 
 
 

Name: Daniel Colson  

Address and/or Residents Association 31 Berkeley House  
15 Hay Hill  
London  
 

Status: 
 

Resident In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 26th May 2017 

Briefly, I am writing to strenuously object to the above-mentioned Licence Application. My 
wife and I (and occasionally one or more of our children) live at 31 Berkeley House, 15 
Hay Hill, London W1J 8NS where we have lived for more than ten years. As you know, 
during the past few years, several new bars, restaurants and night clubs have opened 
within 100-150 yards of where we live including Bocconcino Restaurant. All these new 
establishments have inevitably resulted in a large increase in traffic, noise, disruptions, 
etc, and have made living in Berkeley House almost intolerable.  
 
Unfortunately, our flat overlooks the entrance to Bocconcino Restaurant in Berkeley 
Street as well as the "well" located at the rear of Berkeley House and the side of the 
building immediately next door in which Bocconcino is located. As a result, we are 
continually subjected to extremely loud noise and constant disruption caused by this 
restaurant. In particular, the restaurant uses the well directly below our flat to keep their 
rubbish bins which they fill late at night after the restaurant closes and again early in the 
morning. In addition, the restaurant staff uses this outdoor area as their gathering place to 
smoke, drink, talk/yell and party both late at night and very early in the morning; as a 
result, we are constantly unable to sleep because of all the noise coming from the 
restaurant. The unacceptable noise is already a serious public nuisance and the 
proposed extension of operating hours with live music, dancing, etc will obviously make  
matters significantly worse. We are already subjected to noise, disruption and worse 
caused by some of the restaurant's customers who regularly leave the restaurant having 
clearly consumed too much alcohol. We have, unfortunately, often witnessed fights in the 
street, yelling of obscenities and people urinating and vomiting on the steps and against 

page 25



the walls of Berkeley House.  
 
As police reports will show, we have experienced a very substantial increase in crimes 
and disorder in the past few years. Also, parking in this area is already next to impossible 
and extended hours will only bring even more people and traffic into the immediate area. 
If the Council is serious about supposedly encouraging people to live in this part of 
Mayfair, it needs to limit rather than extend the number of restaurants, bars and clubs and 
should certainly not consider extending the current hours for the sale of alcohol and the 
performance of live music, etc.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this email or would like any additional information, 
please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.  
 

Name: Cllr Glenys Roberts  
 

Address and/or Residents Association Westminster City Council 

Status: 
 

Ward Councillor In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received: 3rd May 2017 

As ward councillor I oppose later hours for these premises on the grounds of prevention 
of public disorder and probable disturbance to sleep of the 300 residents who live in the 
street not to mention the hotels and the Ritz just opposite.  
 
A study of Berkeley street has recently been completed showing it to be overly full of 
disorderly punters and it would not be sensible to add to this.  
 

 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy RNT1 applies Applications will generally be granted and reviews determined, 
subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and 
CH1. 

 

Policy HRS1 applies: 
 

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 
 
 
 
 

page 26



4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6 Premises Licence  
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form 28th April 2017 

5 Representation - Environmental Health            19th May 2017 

6 Representation -  Metropolitan Police Service 26th May 2017 

7 Representation - Cllr Glenys Roberts  3rd May 2017 

8 Representation - Daniel Colson  26th May 2017 

9 Representation - Jaleh  Zand  23rd May 2017 

10 Representation - Rittu Kumar  26th May 2017 

11 Representation - Ron Whelan  23rd May 2017 

12 Representation - Zohreh Ghanadian  23rd May 2017 

13 Representation - Ulrich Brandt-Pollmann  23rd May 2017 

14 Representation - Dimitros Los  25th May 2017 

15 Representation - Ahmad Reza Salar Boroumnad  24th May 2017 

16 Representation - Helen Arjomandkhah  25th May 2017 

17 Representation - Los Christina  25th May 2017 

18 Representation - Peter Cooper  25th May 2017 

 
 
 

page 27



         Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

 
 

page 28



 
 

page 29



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 

 
 

page 30



 
 
 

 
 

page 31



 

  
 

page 32



  
 

page 33



 

  

page 34



 

  
 
 

page 35



 

  
 

page 36



 

page 37



  

page 38



 

 
 

page 39



  
 

page 40



 

  
 
 

page 41



  

page 42



 

  
 
 

page 43



 

  
 

page 44



 

  
 

  
 

page 45



 

  
 

  
 
 
 

page 46



 

  
 
 
 

page 47



  
 
 
 

page 48



  
 

page 49



 

  
 
 

  
 

page 50



 
Appendix 3 

Licence & Appeal History  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

07/03983/WCCMAP Application for a new 
premises Licence 

Granted under 
delegated authority 

Granted by 
Licensing Sub- 
Committee 

08/03313/LIPT Application to transfer 
of premises licence  

18.07.2008 Granted under 
delegated authority 

08/03318/LIPV Application to vary a 
premises licence 

05.06.2008 Granted in part by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

13/05315/LIPN Application for a new 
premises licence 

05.09.2013 Granted by 
Licensing Sub- 
Committee 

14/08667/LIPDPS Application to vary a 
premises licence to 
specify an individual as 
designated premises 
supervisor 

30.10.2014 Granted under 
delegated authority 

15/06223/LIPT Application to transfer 
of premises licence 

10.12.2015 Granted under 
delegated authority 

16/12512/LITENP Temporary Event  
Notice  
31.12.2016 – 
01.01.2017 (17:15pm- 
02:30am) 

29.11.2016 Notice allowed 

17/01368/LIPVM Application for a minor 
variation to a premises 
licence  

01.03.2017 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 51



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application to vary a premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 

page 52



(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 
or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 

page 53



(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 
material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

page 54



 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
None 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
9. The maximum number of persons accommodated at any one time (excluding 

staff) shall not exceed: 
 

Ground Floor : 60 
Lower Ground Floor: 67 

 
subject to the total number at any one time not exceeding 127. 

 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 9 to:  
 
9. The maximum number of persons accommodated at any one time 

(excluding staff) shall not exceed: 
 

Ground Floor 90 
Lower Ground Floor 70 
Subject to the total number at any one time not exceeding 130 

 
10.    A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include 

the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who 
refused the sale. The log shall be available for inspection at the premises by the 
police or an authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises 
is open. 

 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 10 to:  
 
10. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on 

request to an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be 
completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 

page 55



(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
11.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant (i) in which customers are 

shown to their table, (ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress 
service only, (iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that 
are prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at the table using 
non disposable crockery, (iv) which do not provide any take away service of food 
or drink for immediate consumption, (v) which do not provide any take away 
service of food or drink after 23.00, and (vi) where alcohol shall not be sold, 
supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to persons who are 
seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there and 
provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to 
taking such meals. 

 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 11 to:  
 
11. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 

(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 

prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at the table 
using non disposable crockery, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for 
immediate consumption, 

(v)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 
23.00, and 

(vi)  where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for 
consumption by persons who are seated in the premises and bona 
fide taking substantial table meals there, and provided always that 
the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking 
such meals. 

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the 
premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their 
meal. 
 
12.     "Notwithstanding condition 11, alcohol may be supplied and consumed prior to a 

meal in the designated bar area, by up to a maximum at any one time, of 15 
persons dining at the premises" 

 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 12 to:  
 
12. Notwithstanding condition 11, until 0030 hours Monday to Saturday and 

2230 hours Sunday, alcohol may be supplied and consumed prior to a meal 
in the designated bar area, by persons dining at the premises 

 
13. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only, with the 

exception of the designated bar marked on the plans. 

page 56



 
14.      All patrons will be met by a member of staff at the reception area (as marked on 

the plans) before being directed to seating in the relevant area of the premises.  
 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 14 to:  
 
14. Until 0030 hours Monday to Saturday and 2230 hours Sunday, the supply of 

alcohol shall be by way of waiter/waitress service only, with the exception 
of the designated bar marked on the plans. 

 
15.    Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises. 

 
16.       There shall be no self-service from any wine display units. 
 
17. Notices will be prominently displayed at exits requesting the public to respect the 

need of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
18. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting 

patrons to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 
 
19. No servicing to take place before 8am and after 11pm. 
 
20.      Refuse to be stored internally between 11pm and 8am and not to be put outside 

the premises at that time.  
 
21. All waste is to be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 

30 minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
22. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 

the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 22 to:  
 
22. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or 

equipment, shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted 
through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
23   During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 

sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 

 
24. There shall be no striptease, no nudity and all persons to be decently attired at 

all times except when the premises are operating under the provision of a sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence. 

 
25.   The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 

page 57



and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

 
26. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open to 
the public. This staff member shall be able to show Police recent data or footage 
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
27. Patrons temporarily leaving the premises shall not be permitted to take drinks 

outside with them. 
 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 27  to:  
  
27. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. 

to smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with 
them. 

 
28. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or 

private carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers 
made readily available to customers who will be encouraged to use such 
services. 

 
The applicant proposes to amended condition 28 to:  
 
28. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be 

publicly available at all times the premises is open. This telephone number 
is to be made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity.  

page 58



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

page 59



Appendix 6 
Premises Licence - 15/06223/LIPT 
 

 
 

page 60



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 61



 
 

page 62



 

page 63



 

page 64



 
 

page 65



 
 

page 66



 
 

page 67



 
 

page 68



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  6 July 2017 

   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05472/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Marble Arch Theatre 
Western Traffic Island 
Marble Arch 
London 
W1H 7DX 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  Hyde Park 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Miss Yolanda Wade 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 1884 
Email: ywade@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 69

Agenda Item 2



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

22 May 2017 

Applicant: Underbelly Ltd 
 

Premises: Marble Arch Theatre 
 

Premises address: Western Traffic Island 
Marble Arch 
London 
W1H 7DX 
 

Ward: 
 

Hyde Park 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

No 

Premises description: 
 

According to the application the premises will operate as 
a temporary theatre venue with ancillary bar facilities. The 
premises will operate for up to 6 days per week and for no 
more than 40 weeks in any one calendar year. 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises does not have a premises licence and 
there is no licensing history. 
 

Applicant submissions: Spiegeltent operating as a temporary theatre venue with 
ancillary bar facilities. The premises will operate for up to 
6 days per week and for no more than 40 weeks in any 
one calendar year. See Appendix 2 for Operating Plan 
and further details. 
 
The applicant has considerable experience operating 
similar entertainment venues and other large scale events 
throughout the country; in London it has operated a 
Spiegeltent at the Southbank for a number of years and 
more recently at Leicester Square over Christmas. A 
comprehensive management plan and security 
management plan which covers, among other aspects, all 
of the licensing objectives  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 70



1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Performance of a play Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

 

Exhibition of films Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

 

Performance of live music Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 

 

Playing of recorded music Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

 

Performances of dance Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

 

page 71



 

Anything of a similar description  Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

On sales 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 13:30 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 

End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day 
 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 72



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

The Metropolitan Police Service 

Representative:  PC Sandy Russell 
 

Received:  
 

25th May 2017 

  
With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan 
Police, as a responsible authority, will be objecting to this application. It is our belief that 
if granted the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives. 
 
I am in the process of liaising with other relevant police departments involved in this 
application. Once I have discussed their requirements to ensure the safety of the public 
attending this venue I will be in touch with police conditions for your client to consider. 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

The Environmental Health Service 

Representative: Ms Sally Thomas 
 

Received: 
 

15th June 2017 

 
I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence for the above premises. 
 
This is for a maximum of 40 weeks per calendar year.   
 
The applicant has submitted a layout plan, drawing number SK-003 and dated 11/05/17 
and an evacuation plan, drawing number SK-012 and dated 03/05/17.  
 
This representation is based on the plans and Operating Schedule submitted.  Pre-
application advice was provided by myself with reference number 17/03355/PREAPM.  
 
The applicant is seeking the following licensable activities within the Spiegeltent: 
 

1. The Supply of Alcohol for consumption ‘on’ the premises Monday to Saturday 
13:30-23:00 hours and Sunday 13:30-22:30 hours.  

 
2. To provide the following Regulated Entertainment indoors: Plays, Films, Live 

Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance and anything of a similar 
description on Monday to Saturday 13:30-23:00 hours and Sunday 13:30-22:30 
hours. 
 

3. To allow the above provisions from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s 
Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  
 

I wish to make the following representations in relation to the above application: 
 

1. The Supply of Alcohol may have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public 

page 73



Nuisance in the area and may impact on Public Safety. 
 

2. The provision of Regulated Entertainment may have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance in the area and may impact on Public Safety. 

 
3. The seasonal variations may have the likely effect of causing an increase in 

Public Nuisance in the area.  
 
The applicant has proposed conditions within the operating schedule which are being 
considered.  Further conditions may be proposed by Environmental Health in order to 
help prevent Public Nuisance and protect Public Safety.   
 
The granting of the new Premises Licence as presented would have the likely 
effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area and may impact on 
Public Safety. 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

The Licensing Authority 

Representative: David Sycamore 
 

Received: 
 

15th June 2017 

I write in relation to the application submitted for a new Premises Licence for the above 
premises. 
  
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
  
•           Public Nuisance  
  
•           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
  
•           Public Safety  
 
We are concerned that this premises could impact on the area which is an extremely 
busy area for many parts of the year such as Winter Wonderland, summer music events 
as well as being located in an area of high footfall. Our primary concerns is how many 
of the 40 weeks of the year the premises will be open and operated. In relation to 
theatres, and other performance venues  outside the Cumulative Impact Areas - Policy 
PVC1 states that applications will generally be granted, subject to the relevant criteria in 
Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1. At the moment we believe, whilst the premises is 
outside the cumulative impact area, it is none the less an extremely busy area with a 
unique set of circumstances to be considered. We are concerned that the large capacity 
will have an impact on the licensing objectives, particularly when the events finished 
and the public leave the area and could head into the CIA.  
 
With regards to recent events in London, we would expect to see some additional 
conditions that may be dealt with more appropriately by the Police, such as a search 
policy when people arrive at the premises and how queues and dispersal might be 
managed pre and post entry.  

page 74



 
Please accept this as a formal representation and we would expect to see additional 
information with regards to our concerns listed above. A proposed event management 
plan may address our concerns or give us a steer as to the type of provision that will be 
made, aside from the conditions offered.  
 

 
 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: John Zamit 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

 South East Bayswater Resident's Association 
2,Claremont Court 
Queensway 
LONDON 
W2 5HX 
 

Received:  
 

16th June 2017 

 
South East Bayswater Residents' Association (SEBRA) object to this application 
 
We cannot open WCC link this evening to see proposed conditions or other information 
supplied on operation of theatre - assume comprehensive management plan 
 
Our main concern is on security -is there CCTV proposed both inside and outside? 
 
Is there sufficient qualified supervision on persons entering & exiting Marble Arch 
Theatre (especially in these present times of 'high security alert'). 
 
We also have concern as to sufficient toilet provision for large capacity (especially as no 
public toilets in vicinity). 
 
We trust no alcohol allowed to be taken outside premises  
 
What is provision for 'smoking' area and trust sufficient measures in place to deal with 
litter left outside theatre by picnics etc. 
 
Assume measures in place to ensure no 'under age' drinking. 
 
May not be a problem but we do have concerns over public access to Marble Arch, 
especially on north side on busy crossing over to Oxford Street. 
 
We assume application hours etc conform (or less than) with WCC planning permission 
consent. 
 
We note on council licensing report down as in Hyde Park Ward – we thought proposed 
temporary theatre stands in Knightsbridge Ward but maybe wrong. 
 

  
 

page 75



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 

 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy PVC1 applies: Applications will generally be granted and reviews determined, 
subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and 
CH1. 

 

 
 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Miss Yolanda Wade 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 1884 
Email: ywade@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 76



If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form 22nd May 2017 

5 The Metropolitan Police Service Rep 25th May 2017 

6 The Environmental Health Service Rep 15th June 2017 

7 The Licensing Authority Rep 15th June 2017 

8 John Zamit (SEBRA) Rep 16th June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 77



Appendix 1 
Premises Plan  
 

 
 

page 78



 

 
 
 

page 79



 
 
 

 
 

page 80



Appendix 2 
Applicant Submissions  
 

 
 

page 81



 
 

page 82



 

 

page 83



 
 

page 84



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 85



 
 

 
 
 

page 86



page 87



page 88



page 89



page 90



page 91



page 92



page 93



page 94



page 95



page 96



page 97



 

page 98



page 99



page 100



page 101



page 102



 

page 103



 
 

page 104



page 105



page 106



page 107



page 108



page 109



page 110



page 111



page 112



page 113



page 114



page 115



page 116



page 117



page 118



page 119



page 120



page 121



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 122



Appendix 3 
Premises History 
 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 123



Appendix 4  
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  

 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the 
application, grant the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory 
in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any 
representations received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are 
consistent with the operating schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their 
application, or alter or omit these conditions, or add any new condition to such extent as 
the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible 
authority or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted 
by the licensing service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or 
interested party and have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 

premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.        (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are 

designed to require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to 
drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time 
limit or otherwise); 

page 124



 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for 

a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a 
particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk 
of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize 

to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol 
over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters 

or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably 
be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 
favourable manner; 

 
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another 

(other than where that other person is unable to drink without 
assistance by reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

   (a)  a holographic mark, or 
   (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 
 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

   (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 
material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 

page 125



(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 
quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the 
premise licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor 
(if any) or any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence 
holder or designated premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

 
8. (i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the 
permitted price. 

 
 (ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 
 

page 126



(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 
this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the 

film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 

against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
11. Licensable activities shall be restricted to a maximum of 40 weeks per calendar 

year. 
 
12. At least (1) SIA licensed door supervisor shall be on duty at each entrance of the 

premises at all times when it is open for business. 
 
13. The Premises Licence Holder shall comply with all reasonable requirements 

of Westminster Police Licensing Team, Environmental Health Consultation 
Team, Westminster City Council, the London Fire and Emergency Planning 
Authority and the Metropolitan Police Service. 

 
14. Unless otherwise agreed, no later than 28 days prior to the event the Premises 

Licence holder must ensure an Event Management Plan is presented to the 
parties listed in the above conditions for their comments. The Event 
Management Plan shall include, as a minimum: 
Emergency and Evacuation procedures; 
Crowd management and stewarding arrangements; 
A detailed plan showing site layout and emergency egress points; 
A detailed plan showing CCTV locations installed by the Premises License 
Holder; 
Risk Assessments 
A schedule detailing types and locations of emergency equipment 
Sanitary accommodation 

 
15. So far as is reasonably practicable the Premises Licence Holder shall ensure 

that the event is run in accordance with the Event Management Plan. 
 
16. No alcohol shall be taken outside of the boundary of the licensable area. 
 

page 127



17. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to 
respect the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 
18. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises. 

 
19. In relation to the sale of alcohol, a Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be 

operated at the premises where the only acceptable forms of identification are 
recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport 
or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

 
20. The age of the audience members to the Spiegeltent shall be appropriate to the 

performance. 
 
21. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should 

include the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of 
staff who refused the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the 
premises by the police or an authorised officer of the City Council at all times 
whilst the premises is open. 

 
22. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as 

per the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All 
entry will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in 
any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises 
is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on 
the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with 
date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available 
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the 
entire 31 day period. 

 
23. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 
24 hours of the incident and will record the following: 

 
a) all crimes reported to the venue 
b) all ejections of patrons 
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
d) any incidents of disorder 
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
g) any formal visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
24. Any special effects or mechanical installations shall be arranged, operated and 

stored so as to minimise any risk to the safety of those using the premises. The 
following special effects will only be used on 10 days’ prior notice being given to 
the licensing authority where consent has not previously been given. 

 

 dry ice and cryogenic fog 

 smoke machines and fog generators 

 pyrotechnics including fireworks 

 firearms 

page 128



 lasers 

 explosives and highly flammable substances. 

 real flame. 

 strobe lighting. 
 
25. No person shall give at the premises any exhibition, demonstration or 

performance of hypnotism, mesmerism or any similar act or process which 
produces or is intended to produce in any other person any form of induced sleep 
or trance in which susceptibility of the mind of that person to suggestion or 
direction is increased or intended to be increased. NOTE: (1) This rule does not 
apply to exhibitions given under the provisions of Section 2(1A) and 5 of the 
Hypnotism Act 1952. 

 
26. Licensable activities at events in the Spiegeltent shall only be provided to persons 

who are ticket holders for that event. 
 
27. The number of persons accommodated in the Spiegeltent (excluding staff and 

performers) shall not exceed 650 (TBC). 
 
28. The licence holder shall ensure that any queuing for the Spiegeltent 

performances shall take place within the licensed area. 
 
29. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 

provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good 
condition and full working order. 

 
30. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
31. All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use 

of a key, code, card or similar means. 
 
32. The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous. 
 
33. Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency 

safety signs or emergency equipment. 
 
34. All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in 

finishing and furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or inherently 
flame-retarded fabric. Any fabrics used in escape routes (other than foyers), 
entertainment areas or function rooms, shall be non- combustible. 

 
35. The certificates listed below shall be submitted to the licensing authority upon 

written request: 
 

a) Any permanent or temporary emergency lighting battery or system 
b) Any permanent or temporary electrical installation 
c) Any permanent or temporary emergency warning system 

 

page 129



36. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 
from or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 07.00 hours on the 
following day. 

 
37. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23.00 and 07.00 on the 

following day. 
 
38. Flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside the premises shall not cause 

a nuisance to nearby properties (save insofar as they are necessary for the 
prevention of crime). 

 
39. No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licensed area so as to 

cause a nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where 
the premises are situated. 

 
40. A sufficient number of easily identifiable, readily accessible receptacles for 

refuse must be provided, including provisions for concessions. Arrangements 
must be made for regular collection. Public areas must be kept clear of refuse 
and other combustible waste prior to, and so far as is reasonably 
practicable, during the licensed event. 

 
41. A minimum of 28 days prior to the event a Noise Management Plan to promote the 

prevention of public nuisance shall be provided to Westminster City Council's 
Environmental Health Consultation Team for approval. The Noise Management 
Plan shall state the maximum permitted music noise level applicable at the 
nearest noise sensitive premises. Once approved in writing it shall be 
implemented by the Premises Licence Holder. 

 
42. Residential properties and the relevant amenity group(s) in the immediate vicinity 

of Leicester Square will be contacted as soon as reasonably practicable (and in 
any event no later than 28 days) prior to the 

 
43. Event advising them of the times of the Event and any sound check or rehearsal 

times and giving them a telephone number to contact in the event that they have 
any complaints. 

 
44. Any generators, refrigerators or other machinery running overnight will be 

silenced, screened or sited so as not to be audible outside the boundary of the 
Gardens. 

 
45. Electrical generators, where used, must be: 
 

 Suitably located clear of buildings, marquees and structures, and free 
from flammable materials; 

 Enclosed to prevent unauthorised access; 

 Able to provide power for the duration of the event; 

 Backed up electrical generators are to be provided to power essential 
communications, lighting and safety systems in the event of primary 
generator failure. 

 
 
 

page 130



46. The minimum number of toilet accommodation shall include: 
 

a) Women’s Cubicles (16) 
b) Men’s Cubicles (2) 
c) Urinals (7) 

 
47. Details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary structures should be 

provided including emergency exits and signage, fire warning and firefighting 
equipment. 

 
48. Full structural design details and calculations of all and any structures to be 

erected within the licensed area must be submitted to the Westminster City 
Council Building Control. A certificate from a competent person or engineer that 
a completed structure has been erected in accordance with the structural 
drawings and design specification must be available for  inspection prior to a  
relevant structure being used during the licensed event. 

 
49. All fabric, including curtains and drapes used on stage for tents and marquees, 

or plastic and weather sheeting, shall be inherently or durably flame retardant to 
the relevant British Standards. Certificates of compliance must be available upon 
request by an authorised officer of Westminster City Council, The London Fire 
Brigade. 

 
50. Any moving flown equipment must contain a device or method whereby failure 

in the lifting system would not allow the load to fall. All hung scenery and 
equipment must be provided with a minimum of two securely fixed independent 
suspensions such that in the event of failure of one suspension the load shall be 
safely sustained. 

 
51. The Premises Licence Holder must maintain a regular safety patrol at all times 

when the public are present in the licensed area to check for and guard 
against possible emergency hazards. The area underneath any stage and fixed 
seating areas is to be kept clear of flammable materials. 

 
52. The Premises Licence Holder must ensure that competent persons are employed 

to assess the electrical requirements at the event and the compatibility of the 
electricity supply with the equipment to be used. Appropriate safety devices 
(such as 30mA Residual Current Devices at Source) must be used for 
electrical apparatus, particularly for any electrical equipment exposed to adverse 
conditions or electrical equipment to be used in association with hand held 
devices (e.g. microphones). The competent person must make a certificate of 
inspection of the electrical installation available for inspection. 

 
53. All spare fuel, including LPG, must be kept and stored safely in accordance 

with relevant Health and Safety legislation and suitable safety signage and 
firefighting equipment provided. 

 
54. No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the licensing 

authority are satisfied that the premises are constructed or altered in 
accordance with the appropriate provisions of the District Surveyor's Association 
- Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment and the reasonable 

page 131



requirements of Westminster Environmental Health Consultation Team, at which 
time this condition shall be removed from the licence by the licensing authority. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 
55.      There shall be at least one personal licence holder on site during operational  

hours. Details of the personal licence holder (including name and contact 
number) shall be displayed in a prominent position on site. 

  
54.      All staff engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or supervising or  

controlling queues, shall wear high visibility jackets or vests. 
 
55. Licensable activities shall be restricted to a maximum of 40 weeks only operating 

between (month) and (month) in any calendar year where this licence is in effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 132



Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

page 133



 
 
 

page 134



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  6th July 2017  
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/04597/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Club Storm 
28A Leicester Square 
London 
WC2H 7LE 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 135

Agenda Item 3



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

3 May 2017 

Applicant: West End Property Company Limited 
 

Premises: Club Storm 
 

Premises address: 28A Leicester Square 
London 
WC2H 7LE 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End  

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently operating as a Bar and 
Nightclub.  
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises is currently licensed (11/07005/LIPDPS) 
and has had the benefit of a premises licence since 
September 2005.  
 

Applicant submissions: Informative: This is not intended as a condition. 
Application to transfer the existing premises licence 
(11/07005/LIPDPS) has been refused by the Council as 
the former tenants, who hold that licence, refused to give 
their consent to the transfer.  
 
The landlord's only option is therefore to apply for a new 
premises licence. This licence is being applied for upon 
the same terms as the current licence however, following 
consultant with Environmental Health and the 
Metropolitan Police Service, provision for off-sales of 
alcohol is being restricted; the conditions are being 
updated in line with the model conditions and additional 
conditions are being offered regarding door supervisors 
and use of body cameras.  
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 03:30 03:30 03:30 05:00 05:00 05:00 02:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before Bank Holidays the permitted hours shall 
be extended until 02:30 hours the following morning. 

page 136



 
On the morning on which Summertime begins the 
permitted hour shall be extended by 1 hour. 
 
New Year's Eve - from end of permitted hours to 05:00 
on New Year's Day. 

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

On sales  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 03:00 03:00 03:00 03:00 03:00 03:00 00:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

On Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the permitted hours shall extend until 02:00 hours on the 
following morning. 
 
On the morning on which Summertime begins the 
permitted hour shall be extended by 1 hour. 
 
New Year's Eve- from the end of permitted hours on New 
Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's 
Day. 

 

Live Music: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 03:00 03:00 03:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 02:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

On the morning on which Summertime begins the 
permitted hour shall be extended by 1 hour. 
 
The permitted hours on New Year's Eve will extend to the 
start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 

 

Recorded Music: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Unrestricted  
 

 

Performance of Dance: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 03:00 03:00 03:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 02:00 

page 137



Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

On the morning on which Summertime begins the 
permitted hour shall be extended by 1 hour. 
 
The permitted hours on New Year's Eve will extend to the 
start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 

 

Anything of a similar description: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 03:00 03:00 03:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 02:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

On the morning on which Summertime begins the 
permitted hour shall be extended by 1 hour. 
 
The permitted hours on New Year's Eve will extend to the 
start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 
 
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or 
other entertainment of a like kind for consideration and 
with a view to making a profit to be unrestricted. 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 03:30 03:30 03:30 06:00 06:00 06:00 02:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

British Summertime- an additional hour to standard 
timings on the commencement of British Summertime. 
 
New Year's Eve - from the end of permitted hours on 
New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year's Day. 
 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative:  Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received:  
 

25th May 2017 

  
The premises are located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area as stated 
in the City of Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

page 138



 
The applicant has submitted a floor plan of the premises dated April 2017. 

 

This representation is based on the plans and operating schedule submitted. 

 

The applicant is seeking the following 

 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ the premises Monday to Saturday 10.00 to 
03.00 hours and Sunday between 12.00 to 00.30 hours. 

2. To provide Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ Monday to Wednesday 23.00 to 03.30 
hours, Thursday to Saturday 23.00 and 05.00 hours and Sunday 23.00 to 02.00 
hours. 

3. To provide regulated entertainment ‘indoors’ comprising 

 Live Music 

 Recorded Music (Unrestricted) 

 Performance of Dance 

 Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music and 
Performance of Dance 

Monday to Wednesday between 09.00 and 03.00 hours, Thursday to Saturday 
09.00 to 06.00 hours and Sunday between 09.00 to 02.00 hours. 

4. On New Year’s Eve to provide regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 
Supply of Alcohol from the end of authorised hours to commencement of authorised 
hours on New Year’s Day. 

5. Sundays before a Bank Holiday Monday to 02.30 hours for late night refreshment 
and 02.00 hours for Supply of Alcohol. 

6. An additional hour when summer time begins for regulated entertainment, late night 
refreshment and supply of alcohol. 

7. Private entertainment of dancing, music and other entertainment unrestricted. 
 
I wish to make the following representation 

 

1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 

2. The hours requested to permit the provision Of late night refreshment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety 
within the West End CI Area. 

3. The hours requested to permit the provision of regulated entertainment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety 
within the West End CI Area. 

4. The hours requested to permit regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 
supply of alcohol for New Year’s Eve to New Year’s Day will have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 

5. The hours requested to permit late night refreshment and supply of alcohol for 
Sunday’s before a Bank Holiday Monday will have the likely effect of causing an 
increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area 

6. The hours requested to permit regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 
supply of alcohol on the morning on which summer time begins will have the likely 
effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 

7. The hours requested to permit private entertainment will have the likely effect of 

page 139



causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 
 

The granting of the application as presented would have the likely effect of causing an 
increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety within the West End CI Area. 

The applicant has provided additional information and conditions with the application 
which are being assessed. 

 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative: Mr David Sycamore  
 

Received: 
 

31st May 2017  

 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
 
 •           Public Nuisance  
  
•           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
  
•           Public Safety  
 
The application currently exceeds the Westminster Council Statement of Licensing 
Policy core hours and as such must demonstrate an exemption to policy to be granted. 
The premises is situated in the cumulative impact area as defined in our policy and 
therefore must demonstrate how they will not add to the cumulative impact. We 
understand this application is to replace a current premises licence which could not be 
transferred, but there is no mention in relation to this circumstance as being an 
exemption to our policy. We do however support the applicants request to remove the 
provisions off the sale of alcohol off the premises.  
 
The application is currently contrary to policies HRS1, CIP1, PB1 and MD2 and further 
information needs to be provided to address these parts of the policy.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service  

Representative: PC Sandy Russell   
 

Received: 
 

31st May 2017  

 
With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan 
Police, as a responsible authority, will be objecting to this application. The venue is 
situated within the heart of Leicester Square which is part Westminster’s Cumulative 
Impact Area; it is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
 The conditions proposed in the application are acceptable to us in the main, however 

page 140



after consideration since we met police require the following changes/additional 
conditions: 
 
·        A minimum of 2 SIA staff shall be deployed with Body Worn Video, capable of 
recording audio and video in any light condition as per the minimum requirements of the 
Westminster Police Licensing Team. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the 
preceding 31 day period.  
 
·         Amendment of the second part of the CCTV condition: A staff member from the 
premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system (including where 
applicable any Body Worn Video system) shall be on the premises at all times when the 
premises is open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised 
council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of 
delay when requested.  
  
·         A minimum of 5 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises 
from 23.00hrs to close 7 days per week. A minimum of 2 on the entrance and 3 inside 
the premises (This is still subject to discussion based on what the premises is to 
become) Prior to this time door staff numbers will be at least a 1:100 ratio unless 
decided otherwise by a risk assessment conducted by a member of the venue’s  
management team. 
 
 ·          At least 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the entrance of the 
premises at all times whilst it is open for 
business. A minimum of one to be wearing Body Worn Video throughout trading times 
and for 30 minutes after closing whilst dispersing  
  
·         After 21.00hrs any persons entering or re-entering the premises shall be 
searched by a SIA licensed member of staff and 
monitored by the premises CCTV system. Search wands will be used during all 
searches. 
  
·         Body worn video systems used by the premises must be deployed immediately 
during any verbal altercation or use of force made by any member of staff 
  
·         All staff engaged in the use of Body Worn Video shall receive relevant training to 
ensure they are confident it it’s use. A record will be kept on the premises of which staff 
have been trained. This record will be available to the relevant authority for inspection 
upon request 
  
·         For any pre-booked event or occasion when a guest list is in operation, only a 
Director, the Premises Licence Holder, the Designated Premises Supervisor or the Duty 
Manager will be authorised to add additional names to the guest list. Any additions less 
than 48 hours before the pre-booked event or occasion must be legibly entered on the 
list and signed for by a Director, the Premises Licence Holder, the Designated Premises 
Supervisor or the Duty Manager. The list will be kept for a period of 31 days following 
the event and will be made available immediately for inspection upon the request by a 
Police Officer or Council Officer.  
  
·         After 21:00, or as agreed with the Police in writing (and a copy of any agreement 

page 141



to be held at reception), all security engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or 
supervising or controlling queues, shall wear high visibility yellow jackets or vests. 
  
·         All externally promoted events held at the venue shall be notified to the 
Metropolitan Police Service. A form 696 will be completed and submitted within 14 days 
prior to the event, or such less time as agreed with the Police. When carrying out the 
risk assessment for the event and holding the event the venue will take into account any 
reasonable advice received from the Westminster Police Licensing Team and the 
central Clubs/Promoters Police Team who receive the form 696 (or their equivalent) and 
upon a reasonable request by Police the venue will not run the event.  
 
We request a reduction in hours. Monday to Saturday night trading to close at 03.00hrs 
with a last entry time of 02.00hrs 
  
Sunday night trading to close at 02.00hrs with a last entry time of midnight. 
 
Police additional comments:  
 
I have conducted crime stats on what was ‘Storm’ from June 2015 until it closed last 
summer. I found within this period of time (12 months approx.): 
 
Common Assault X 5 
Actual Bodily Harm X 7 
Grievous Bodily Harm X 5 
Public Order Act Offences X 2 
Assault on police X 2 
Serious Sexual Offences X 1 
 
A total of 22 violent offences directly linked to the premises. 
 
Had the venue not closed police would have instigated Review proceedings against this 
venue. I would like this information  included for Committee next week please. My 
reasons are that police would support an appropriate alternative venue at this location 
and not the crime generator that was there before. 
 
 

 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy CIA1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 

page 142



Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy PB2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 

Policy MD2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact  Areas, other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours, under Policy HRS1. 

4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6 Premises Licence – 11/07005/LIPDPS 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  March 2015 

page 143



the Licensing Act 2003  

4 Application Form 3rd May 2017 

5 Representation – Environmental Health            25th May 2017 

6 Representation – Licensing Authority  31st May 2017 

7 Representation – MET Police 31st May 2017  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

page 144



 

page 145



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 
Proposed Conditions 
 
1.  Alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be permitted prior to 23:00 hours 

but shall be restricted to: 
 

(a)  Customers who have purchased wine as part of a table meal and who 
wish to take unfinished bottles home with them; and 

(b)  Alcohol in a sealed vessel supplied ancillary to a take-away meal. 
 

2.  An attendant shall be on duty in the cloakroom during the whole time that it is in 
use. 

 
3.  The number of persons permitted on the premises at any one time (excluding 

staff) shall not exceed 235 persons. 
 
4.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises. 

 
5.  There shall be a Personal Licence Holder on duty on the premises at all times 

when the premises are authorised to sell alcohol. 
 
6.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all other persons shall be decently 

attired at all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of 
a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. 

 
7.  There shall be no payment made by or on behalf of the licence holder to any 

person for bringing customers to the premises. 
 
8.  The sale of alcohol shall be ancillary to the use of the premises for music and 

dancing and substantial refreshment. 
 
9.  After the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol then 30 minutes drinking up time 

shall be permitted. 
 
10.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 says with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
11.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 

page 146



copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
12 & 13. Door staff numbers, requirement to wear hi-vis and use of body cameras to be 
agreed with the Police. 
 
14.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised session and will record the following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder · 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

15. (a)  All drinking vessels used in the venue shall be polycarbonate. All drinks in 
glass bottles are to be decanted into polycarbonate containers or 
polycarbonate carafes prior to be served, with the exception of 
champagne or bottles of spirits with a minimum size of 70cl supplied by 
waiter I waitress service to tables. Staff shall clear all empty champagne 
and spirit bottles promptly from the tables. Customers shall not be 
permitted to leave their table carrying any such glass bottles or drink 
directly from the bottle. 

 
(b)  Notwithstanding (a) above, with the written agreement of the Westminster 

Licensing Police, a copy of which will be held at the premises, reception, 
glass drinking vessels may be used for private or pre-booked events 
within the (specified area).  

 
16.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 
17.  After 23:00 hours, all customers entering the premises will have their 10 scanned 

on entry, save for a maximum number of 25 guests per night who may be 
admitted at the manager's discretion without 10 being scanned and records, and 
that a legible record of these people's names shall be retained on the premises 
for inspection by the Licensing Authority and Police for a period of 31 days. The 
name of the manager authorising the entrance without scanning will also be 
recorded. 

 
18.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 

provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
19.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

page 147



20.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 
key, code, card or similar means. 

 
21.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held en 

other than by an approved device. 
 
22.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous. 
 
23.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 

signs or emergency equipment. 
 
24.  All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in 

finishing and furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or 
inherently flame-retarded fabric. Any fabrics used in escape routes (other than 
foyers), entertainment areas or function rooms, shall be non-combustible. 

 
25.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport, proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram or Military 10 card. 

 
26.  No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 

the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
27.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 
 
28.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 

the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
29.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 

sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 

 
30.  No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the 

premises shall take place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the following day. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 148



Following further discussions with the Metropolitan Police and the applicant, the 
following additional conditions are also proposed:  

 
Additional Conditions 
   
1.        After 21:00, or such other time as agreed with the Police in writing (and a copy of 

any agreement to be made available upon request), all security engaged outside 
the entrance to the premises, or supervising or controlling queues, shall wear 
high visibility yellow jackets or vests.   

  
2.        All externally promoted events held at the venue shall be notified to the 

Metropolitan Police Service. A form 696 will be completed and submitted within 
14 days prior to the event, or such less time as agreed with the Police. When 
carrying out the risk assessment for the event and holding the event the venue 
will take into account any reasonable advice received from the Westminster 
Police Licensing Team and the central Clubs/Promoters Police Team who 
receive the form 696 (or their equivalent) and upon a reasonable request by 
Police the venue will not run the event.   

  
3.        Where the premises are operating for a specific pre-booked event or occasion 

when a guest list is in operation, only a Director, the Premises Licence Holder, 
the Designated Premises Supervisor or the Duty Manager will be authorised to 
add additional names to the guest list. Any additions less than 48 hours before 
the pre-booked event or occasion must be legibly entered on the list and signed 
for by a Director, the Premises Licence Holder, the Designated Premises 
Supervisor or the Duty Manager. The list will be kept for a period of 31 days 
following the event and will be made available immediately for inspection upon 
the request by a Police Officer or Council Officer. 

  
4.        From 21:00 hours, or such other time as agreed with the Police in writing (and a 

copy of any agreement to be made available upon request), a minimum of 2 SIA 
door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises.  A minimum of one shall be 
deployed at the entrance and shall wear a Body Worn Video Camera. Additional 
door supervisors shall be employed as determined by a documented 
management risk assessment taking cognizance of police advice of 1 SIA per 
100 customers before 23.00hrs and 1 SIA per 50 customers thereafter, (or such 
other advice as may be given from time to time).  At all times from 23:00 hours, 2 
door supervisors shall be deployed at the entrance.  The risk assessment to be 
made available upon request. 

  
5.        Amendment of the second part of the CCTV condition (no. 11 on page 10 of 

application):  
  
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 
CCTV system (including where applicable any Body Worn Video system) shall 
be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member 
must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  
  

6.        After 23:00 hours, or such earlier time as deemed necessary following risk 
assessment, a search policy shall be implemented of customers entering the 

page 149



premises.  Such policy to be documented having regard to police advice and 
shall be made available upon request.  

  
7.        a)       From 23:00 hours, a minimum of 2 door supervisors shall be deployed 

with Body Worn Video Camera, capable of recording audio and video in 
any light condition as per the minimum requirements of the Westminster 
Police Licensing Team.  The video cameras shall be used until 30 minutes 
after closing whilst customers are dispersing.   

 
b)        All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date 

and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day 
period. 

 
c)        A Body worn video system shall be deployed immediately during any 

verbal altercation or use of force made by any member of door staff. 
 
d)        All door staff engaged in the use of Body Worn Video shall receive 

relevant training to ensure that they are confident in its use.  A record shall 
be kept on the premises of which door staff have been trained. This record 
will be available to the Police or Licensing Authority for inspection upon 
request.  

  
Polycarbonate Drinking Vessels  -  
  
Proposed amendment to conditions 15 (a) & (b) on page 11 of the application which is 
currently not agreed but which I shall address the committee upon: 
  

 By 23:00 hours, there should be no consumption of drinks (excluding hot drinks) 
from vessels other than polycarbonate vessels.  This conditions shall not apply to 
the serving and consumption of wine, sparkling wine, spirits or champagne 
bottles with a minimum size of 70cl and champagne flutes supplied by 
waiter/waitress service to tables.  Staff shall clear all empty wine, spirit and 
champagne bottles promptly from the tables.  Customers shall not be permitted 
to leave their table carrying any such glass bottles or drink directly from the 
bottle.  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 150



 
 
 
 
 

page 151



 
 
 

 
 

page 152



 

 
 
 
 

page 153



 
 
 

page 154



 
 
 

page 155



 
 
 
 
 

page 156



 
 

page 157



 
 

page 158



 
 

page 159



 
 

page 160



 

page 161



 

 

page 162



 
 

page 163



 
 

page 164



 
 

page 165



 

page 166



 

 
 

page 167



 

page 168



 
 

page 169



 
 
 
 
 

page 170



 
 
 
 

page 171



        Appendix 3 
Premises History - 11/07005/LIPDPS 

 
 

Application 

 

 

Details of 

Application 

 

Date Determined 

 

Decision 

06/03612/WCCMAP New Premises 

Application 

18.09.2005 Granted  

 

09/08905/LIPDPS Application to Vary 

the Designated 

Premises 

Supervisor 

26.07.2010 Invalid Application 

10/04128/LIPDPS Application to Vary 

the Designated 

Premises 

Supervisor 

08.10.2010 Granted Under 

Delegated 

Authority 

10/10495/LIPDPS Application to Vary 

the Designated 

Premises 

Supervisor 

18.02.2011 Granted Under 

Delegated 

Authority 

11/07005/LIPDPS Application to Vary 

the Designated 

Premises 

Supervisor 

26.07.2011 Granted Under 

Delegated 

Authority 

14/02814/LIPV Variation Application 19.06.2014 Refused by 

Licensing Sub 

Committee 

17/03858/LIPT Transfer Application 13.04.2017 Invalid Application 

 

 

Application 

 

 

Details of 

Application 

 

Date Determined 

 

Decision 

16/06446/LITENP Temporary Event 

Notice 

25.07.2016 Notice Granted 

16/06441/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

27.06.2016 Notice Granted 

16/06391/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

29.06.2016 Notice Granted 

page 172



16/06268/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

05.07.2016 Notice Granted 

16/04266/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

09.05.2016 Notice Granted 

16/03805/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

21.04.2016 Notice Granted 

16/03801/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

21.04.2016 Notice Granted 

16/02905/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

24.03.2016 Notice Granted 

16/02897/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

12.04.2016 Notice Granted 

16/02886/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

11.04.2016 Notice Granted 

16/02878/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

12.04.2016 Notice Granted 

16/01987/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

03.03.2016 Notice Granted 

16/01985/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

03.03.2016 Notice Granted 

16/01983/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

03.03.2016 Notice Granted 

16/00188/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

20.01.2016 Notice Granted 

page 173



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 174



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 175



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 

page 176



 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9.  Alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be permitted prior to 23:00 hours 

but shall be restricted to: 
 

(a)  Customers who have purchased wine as part of a table meal and who 
wish to take unfinished bottles home with them; and 

(b)  Alcohol in a sealed vessel supplied ancillary to a take-away meal. 
 

10.  An attendant shall be on duty in the cloakroom during the whole time that it is in 
use. 

 
11.  The number of persons permitted on the premises at any one time (excluding 

staff) shall not exceed 235 persons. 
 
12.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises. 

 
13.  There shall be a Personal Licence Holder on duty on the premises at all times 

when the premises are authorised to sell alcohol. 
 
14.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all other persons shall be decently 

attired at all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of 
a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. 

 
15.  There shall be no payment made by or on behalf of the licence holder to any 

person for bringing customers to the premises. 
 
16.  The sale of alcohol shall be ancillary to the use of the premises for music and 

dancing and substantial refreshment. 
 
17.  After the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol then 30 minutes drinking up time 

shall be permitted. 
 
18.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 says with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
19.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 

page 177



20 & 21. Door staff numbers, requirement to wear hi-vis and use of body cameras to be 
agreed with the Police. 
 
22.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised session and will record the following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder · 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

23. (a)  All drinking vessels used in the venue shall be polycarbonate. All drinks in 
glass bottles are to be decanted into polycarbonate containers or 
polycarbonate carafes prior to be served, with the exception of 
champagne or bottles of spirits with a minimum size of 70cl supplied by 
waiter I waitress service to tables. Staff shall clear all empty champagne 
and spirit bottles promptly from the tables. Customers shall not be 
permitted to leave their table carrying any such glass bottles or drink 
directly from the bottle. 

 
(b)  Notwithstanding (a) above, with the written agreement of the Westminster 

Licensing Police, a copy of which will be held at the premises, reception, 
glass drinking vessels may be used for private or pre-booked events 
within the (specified area).  

 
24  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 
25.  After 23:00 hours, all customers entering the premises will have their 10 scanned 

on entry, save for a maximum number of 25 guests per night who may be 
admitted at the manager's discretion without 10 being scanned and records, and 
that a legible record of these people's names shall be retained on the premises 
for inspection by the Licensing Authority and Police for a period of 31 days. The 
name of the manager authorising the entrance without scanning will also be 
recorded. 

 
26.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 

provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
27.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

28.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 
key, code, card or similar means. 

 

page 178



29.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held en 
other than by an approved device. 

 
30.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous. 
 
31.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 

signs or emergency equipment. 
 
32.  All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in 

finishing and furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or 
inherently flame-retarded fabric. Any fabrics used in escape routes (other than 
foyers), entertainment areas or function rooms, shall be non-combustible. 

 
33.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport, proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram or Military 10 card. 

 
34.  No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 

the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
35.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 
 
36.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 

the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
37.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 

sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 

 
38.  No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the 

premises shall take place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the following day. 
 
Conditions proposed by the Police  
 
39.  A minimum of 2 SIA staff shall be deployed with Body Worn Video, capable of 

recording audio and video in any light condition as per the minimum 
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All recordings shall be 
stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.  

 
 Applicant proposes: 
 

From 21:00 hours, or such other time as agreed with the Police in writing (and a 
copy of any agreement to be made available upon request), a minimum of 2 SIA 
door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises.  A minimum of one shall be 

page 179



deployed at the entrance and shall wear a Body Worn Video Camera. Additional 
door supervisors shall be employed as determined by a documented 
management risk assessment taking cognizance of police advice of 1 SIA per 
100 customers before 23.00hrs and 1 SIA per 50 customers thereafter, (or such 
other advice as may be given from time to time).  At all times from 23:00 hours, 2 
door supervisors shall be deployed at the entrance.  The risk assessment to be 
made available upon request. 

 
40. Amendment of the second part of the CCTV condition:  

 
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 
CCTV system (including where applicable any Body Worn Video system) shall 
be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member 
must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
 Applicant proposes:  
  

Amendment of the second part of the CCTV condition  
  
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of 
the CCTV system (including where applicable any Body Worn Video 
system) shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council 
officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of 
delay when requested.  

  
41. A minimum of 5 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises 

from 23.00hrs to close 7 days per week. A minimum of 2 on the entrance and 3 
inside the premises (This is still subject to discussion based on what the 
premises is to become) Prior to this time door staff numbers will be at least a 
1:100 ratio unless decided otherwise by a risk assessment conducted by a 
member of the venue’s  management team. 

 
42.     At least 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the entrance of the 

premises at all times whilst it is open for business. A minimum of one to be 
wearing Body Worn Video throughout trading times and for 30 minutes after 
closing whilst dispersing  

  
43. After 21.00hrs any persons entering or re-entering the premises shall be 

searched by a SIA licensed member of staff and monitored by the premises 
CCTV system. Search wands will be used during all searches. 

  
44. Body worn video systems used by the premises must be deployed immediately 

during any verbal altercation or use of force made by any member of staff 
  
45. All staff engaged in the use of Body Worn Video shall receive relevant training to 

ensure they are confident it it’s use. A record will be kept on the premises of 
which staff have been trained. This record will be available to the relevant 
authority for inspection upon request 

  

page 180



46. For any pre-booked event or occasion when a guest list is in operation, only a 
Director, the Premises Licence Holder, the Designated Premises Supervisor or 
the Duty Manager will be authorised to add additional names to the guest list. 
Any additions less than 48 hours before the pre-booked event or occasion must 
be legibly entered on the list and signed for by a Director, the Premises Licence 
Holder, the Designated Premises Supervisor or the Duty Manager. The list will 
be kept for a period of 31 days following the event and will be made available 
immediately for inspection upon the request by a Police Officer or Council 
Officer.  

 
 Applicant proposes:  
 

Where the premises are operating for a specific pre-booked event or 
occasion when a guest list is in operation, only a Director, the Premises 
Licence Holder, the Designated Premises Supervisor or the Duty Manager 
will be authorised to add additional names to the guest list. Any additions 
less than 48 hours before the pre-booked event or occasion must be 
legibly entered on the list and signed for by a Director, the Premises 
Licence Holder, the Designated Premises Supervisor or the Duty Manager. 
The list will be kept for a period of 31 days following the event and will be 
made available immediately for inspection upon the request by a Police 
Officer or Council Officer. 

  
47. After 21:00, or as agreed with the Police in writing (and a copy of any agreement 

to be held at reception), all security engaged outside the entrance to the 
premises, or supervising or controlling queues, shall wear high visibility yellow 
jackets or vests. 

 
 Applicant proposes:  
 

After 21:00, or such other time as agreed with the Police in writing (and a 
copy of any agreement to be made available upon request), all security 
engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or supervising or 
controlling queues, shall wear high visibility yellow jackets or vests.  

  
48. All externally promoted events held at the venue shall be notified to the 

Metropolitan Police Service. A form 696 will be completed and submitted within 
14 days prior to the event, or such less time as agreed with the Police. When 
carrying out the risk assessment for the event and holding the event the venue 
will take into account any reasonable advice received from the Westminster 
Police Licensing Team and the central Clubs/Promoters Police Team who 
receive the form 696 (or their equivalent) and upon a reasonable request by 
Police the venue will not run the event.  

 
 Applicant proposes: 

 
All externally promoted events held at the venue shall be notified to the 
Metropolitan Police Service. A form 696 will be completed and submitted 
within 14 days prior to the event, or such less time as agreed with the 
Police. When carrying out the risk assessment for the event and holding 
the event the venue will take into account any reasonable advice received 
from the Westminster Police Licensing Team and the central 

page 181



Clubs/Promoters Police Team who receive the form 696 (or their 
equivalent) and upon a reasonable request by Police the venue will not run 
the event.   

   
Further additional conditions:     

  
49.        After 23:00 hours, or such earlier time as deemed necessary following risk 

assessment, a search policy shall be implemented of customers entering the 
premises.  Such policy to be documented having regard to police advice and 
shall be made available upon request.  

  
50.        a)       From 23:00 hours, a minimum of 2 door supervisors shall be deployed 

with Body Worn Video Camera, capable of recording audio and video in 
any light condition as per the minimum requirements of the Westminster 
Police Licensing Team.  The video cameras shall be used until 30 minutes 
after closing whilst customers are dispersing.   

 
b)        All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date 

and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day 
period. 

 
c)        A Body worn video system shall be deployed immediately during any 

verbal altercation or use of force made by any member of door staff. 
 
d)        All door staff engaged in the use of Body Worn Video shall receive 

relevant training to ensure that they are confident in its use.  A record shall 
be kept on the premises of which door staff have been trained. This record 
will be available to the Police or Licensing Authority for inspection upon 
request.  

page 182



 Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 
 

 
 
 
Resident Count: 24  
 
 
 

page 183



Appendix 6 
Premises Licence – 11/07005/LIPDPS 
 

 
 

page 184



 
 
 
 
 

page 185



 
 
 
 
 

page 186



 
 
 
 
 

page 187



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 188



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 189



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 190



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 191



 
 
 
 
 

page 192



 
 
 
 
 

page 193



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 194



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  6th July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/04163/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  London Film Museum 
45 Wellington Street 
London 
WC2E 7BN 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 195

Agenda Item 4



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

21 April 2017 

Applicant: London Film Museum (Covent Garden) Ltd 
 

Premises: London Film Museum 
 

Premises address: 45 Wellington Street 
London 
WC2E 7BN 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently operating as a museum.  

Variation description: To extend the hours for licensable activities to 02:00 in 
the area currently hatched black on the plan attached to 
the current licence. 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since April 2012. 
 

Applicant submissions: The London Film Museum hosts events as an ancillary 
part of their museum operation. The current display is 
"Bond in Motion". The variation is for selected private and 
pre-booked events 
 

 
 
 
 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Exhibition of films / Performance of Dance / Live Music / Recorded Music / 
Performance of a Play  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 09:00 00:30 09:00 02:00  
Please see plan 
at appendix 1 

 
To extend the hours 
for licensable activities 
to 02:00 in the area 
currently hatched 
black on the plan 

Tuesday 09:00 00:30 09:00 02:00 

Wednesday 09:00 00:30 09:00 02:00 

Thursday 09:00 00:30 09:00 02:00 

Friday 09:00 00:30 09:00 02:00 

Saturday 09:00 00:30 09:00 02:00 

Sunday 12:00 22:00 12:00 22:00 

page 196



Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings 

Current: Proposed: 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 
On Sundays before bank holidays 
12:00 - 02:00  
 

 

Anything of a Similar Description  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:00  
Please see plan 
at appendix 1 

 
To extend the hours 
for licensable activities 
to 02:00 in the area 
currently hatched 
black on the plan 

Tuesday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:00 

Wednesday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:00 

Thursday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:00 

Friday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:00 

Saturday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:00 

Sunday 12:00 22:00 12:00 22:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 
On Sundays before bank holidays 
12:00 - 02:00  
 

 
 
 
 

Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Indoors  Indoors  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:00  
Please see plan 
at appendix 1 

 
To extend the hours 
for licensable activities 
to 02:00 in the area 
currently hatched 
black on the plan 

Tuesday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:00 

Wednesday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:00 

Thursday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:00 

Friday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:00 

Saturday 23:00 00:30 23:00 02:00 

Sunday     

page 197



Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 
On Sundays before bank holidays 
12:00 - 02:00  
 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

Both Both 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:00  
Please see plan 
at appendix 1 

 
To extend the hours 
for licensable activities 
to 02:00 in the area 
currently hatched 
black on the plan 

Tuesday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:00 

Wednesday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:00 

Thursday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:00 

Friday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:00 

Saturday 10:00 00:30 10:00 02:00 

Sunday 12:00 22:00 12:00 22:00  

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 

 
From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 
On Sundays before bank holidays 
12:00 - 02:00  
 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:30  
Please see plan 
at appendix 1 

 
To extend the hours 
for licensable activities 
to 02:00 in the area 
currently hatched 
black on the plan 

Tuesday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:30 

Wednesday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:30 

Thursday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:30 

Friday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:30 

Saturday 09:00 23:00 09:00 02:30 

Sunday 09:00 22:30 09:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 

Current: Proposed: 

 
From the end of permitted hours 

 
From the end of permitted hours 

page 198



timings: on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 

on New Year's Eve to the 
beginning of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 
 
On Sundays before bank holidays 
12:00 - 02:30  
 

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

 
None applied for.  

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

 
None suggested.  

 
None applied for.  

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

Not applicable Not applicable 

 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan police Service 

Representative:  PC Michael Day  
 

Received:  
 

2nd May 2017  
 

I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a responsible authority, are 
making a representation. It is our belief that if granted the application would undermine 
the Licensing Objectives. 
 
The venue is situated within the West End Cumulative Impact Area, a locality where this 
is traditionally high crime and disorder but I believe this application may cause further 
policing problems in the area.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 199



Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority 

Representative: Mr David Sycamore  
 

Received: 
 

19th May 2017 
 

 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
 
•           Public Nuisance  
 
•           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
 
•           Public Safety  
 
The application is currently seeking hours which will go well beyond the Core Hours 
Policy and is located in the already busy West End Cumulative Impact areas as defined 
by Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 2016. The applicant seeks to increase 
the hours permitted for all licensable activities including the sale of alcohol in a defined 
hatched area. Policy PVC2 states ‘Applications will be granted subject to other policies 
in this Statement, provided it is demonstrated that they will not add to cumulative impact 
in the Cumulative Impact Areas’ we would therefore expect to see additional 
conditioning to address the cumulative impact that would occur. (HRS1 and CIP1, PB2 
and PVC2)  
 
No proposed conditions have been submitted with the application and we are 
concerned that the current licence conditions do not address the substantial increase in 
hours which could affect how the 3 licensing objective listed above are upheld. Private 
events are limited to 150 events per year so could effectively run every weekend all 
year around. To assist us in assessing the application and likely impact, as per 
condition 25 on the licence we request the 2016/2017 booking records.   
  
Please accept this as a formally objection to the variation application. 
 
 

 

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

page 200



Policy PB2 applies: 
 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 

Policy CIA1 applies: 
 

(i) It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 
 
(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 
 

 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form 21st April 2017 

5 Representation – MET Police            2nd May 2017 

6 Representation – Licensing Authority  19th May 2017 

 

page 201



        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans – Proposed  
 

 

page 202



Premises Plans – Current 

 

page 203



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 
None Submitted.  

 

page 204



Appendix 3 
Licence & Appeal History  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

12/00191/LIPN Application for a new 
premises licence 

17.04.2012 Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

13/04403/LIPV Application to vary 
the premises licence:  
 
1. Extend the 
terminal hour of all 
existing licensable 
activities on Monday 
to Saturday from 
23:00 to 00:30, no 
change to existing 
Sunday timings. 
 
2. To incorporate the 
licensable activity of 
Late Night 
Refreshment, 
Monday to Saturday 
23:00 to 00:30. 

12.09.2013 Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 205



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application to vary a premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

page 206



 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 

or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

page 207



 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 

material which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 

page 208



(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the 

film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 

against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority.   

 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
None 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 
11. The provision of licensable activities shall be ancillary to the premises' main use 

as a museum/exhibition space. 
 
12. The supply of alcohol at the premises shall only be : 

a. to a person seated taking a table meal in the café area hatched black on 
the plan, and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal; 

b. persons attending a private or pre-booked function or conference, 
c. artistes and staff. 

 
13. There shall be no self-service of alcohol in the café area. 
 
14. There shall be no supply of draught beer. 
 
15. No beer or cider above 5.5% ABV is to be sold from the premises. 
 
16. Food and non-intoxicating beverages shall be available in all parts of the 

premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.  
 
17. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 

the needs to local residents and leave the area quietly.  
 

page 209



18. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, eg to 
smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  

 
19. There shall be no tables and chairs placed outside the premises. 
 
20. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All 
entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every 
person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record 
whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout 
the preceding 31 day period. 

 
21. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open 
to the public.  This staff member must be able to show a Police or authorised 
council officer recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
22. At least 1 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the Wellington Street 

entrance of the premises after 20:00 hours.  A SIA  registered door supervisor to 
supervise the smoking area outside of the Piazza entrance after 20:00. 

 
23. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 

 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
24. All entrance doors and windows to be kept closed after 9pm except for 

immediate access and egress of persons.  
  
25. On occasions when the premises is being used for private pre-booked corporate 

hire events, a register detailing the timing of the booking detailing the booking, 
numbers attending the event, the contact details of the event organisers are to 
be recorded, such bookings where alcohol is sold after 20:00 hours are to be 
limited to 150 days in a calendar year.  The premises management will record 
the details of such events in a log with a record of the event such log to be 
readily available to the Police or an authorised Council Officer. 

 
26. A Notice giving seven days written notice of all private pre-booked functions shall 

be displayed at the Wellington Street entrance in a conspicuous position. 

page 210



 
27. The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the 

premises including gutter/channel at its junction with the kerb edge shall be 
swept and/or washed every day that the premises are open after the end of the 
activities. 

 
28. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 

30 minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
29. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or 

placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours. 
 
30. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23.00 and 08.00. 
 
31. There shall be no cinema style seating at the premises unless otherwise agreed 

with the Westminster Environmental Health Consultation Team. 
 
32. No person shall give at the premises any exhibition, demonstration or 

performance of hypnotism, mesmerism or any similar act or process which 
produces or is intended to produce in any other person any form of induced 
sleep or trance in which susceptibility of the mind of that person to suggestion or 
direction is increased or intended to be increased. 

 
NOTE: (1) This rule does not apply to exhibitions given under the provisions of 
Section 2(1A) and 5 of the Hypnotism Act 1952. 

 
33. Any special effects or mechanical installations shall be arranged and stored so 

as to minimise any risk to the safety of those using the premises.  The following 
special effects will only be used on 10 days prior notice being given to the 
Licensing Authority where consent has not previously been given.  

 
o dry ice and cryogenic fog 
o smoke machines and fog generators 
o pyrotechnics including fire works 
o firearms 
o lasers 
o explosives and highly flammable substances. 
o real flame. 
o strobe lighting. 

 
34. There shall be no striptease or nudity and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times.  
 
35. The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (including 

staff) shall not exceed 450 persons.  
 
36. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress only. 
 
37. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 

the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  
 

page 211



38. Plant and machinery apart from refrigeration shall not operate after 23:00 hours 
or before 08:00. 

 
39. The ground floor on Wellington Street must not be used for any regulated 

entertainment or any supply of alcohol. 
 
40. After 21:00 all patrons and staff (except for the purposes of setting the alarm) 

shall egress via the Piazza exit. 
 
41.    Licensable activities shall be permitted from the end of permitted hours on New 

Year's Eve to the beginning of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 212



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

page 213



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Bocconcino, 19 Berkeley Street, W1
	2 Marble Arch Theatre, Western Traffic Island, Marble Arch, W1
	3 Club Storm, 28A Leicester Square, WC2
	4 London Film Museum, 45 Wellington Street, WC2

